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Kavit Industries Limited m
NOTICE

MOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the members of KAVIT
INDUSTRIES LIMITED  [formally known as Atreya Petrochem Limited) will be held on
Friday, 25th September 2015 at 10:00 A.M. at its Registered Office situated at willage
Tundao, Taluka: Savli, Vadodara -391775, Gujarat to transact the following Business:

OHDINARY BUSINESSES:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements including  Audited
Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss account and Cash Flow Statement for
the vear ended March 31, 2015 along with the Reports of the Auditors’ and
Boards™ thereaor.

To reappoint Auditers of the Company and fx their remuneration and in this
regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolation:

‘RESOLVED THAT M/s. Sheelal Samrniya & Associates, Charfered Accountarts
{Firm Registration No, 011478C), be and are hersby reappoinfed as Slatutory
Auditors' of the Company, o hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting il the conclusion of e next Annual General Maeting of the Company al
such remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company,”

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kavilt Jayeshbhai Thakkar who retires by
rotation and, being eligible, affers himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSIMNESSES:

4,

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following
Resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT |, pursuant o [he provisions of Sechions 186, 187, 204 and ather
applicable provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 and the rules made thersunder
{ncluding any stalwtory modificalion(s) or re-enaciment thereof for the time being in
force), read with Schedule V ko the Companies Act, 2013 and subject lo such
approval from the Cenfral Government or any other authorify, as may be required.
the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded fo the re-appointment of Mr.
Jayesh Raichandbhai Thakkar as the ‘Managing Director’ of the Company, who will
accordingly be not lable fo refire by rofation, whose terms of office shall considersd
effective from 28 v December, 2014 and will expire on 28" December, 2018, on the
ferms and conditions, including the terms of remuneration as set out in his lether of
regppoiniment given fo him laid before the meeting for the purpose of inspechion and
briefed in Explanafory Statement annexed to this Notice ("Terms of Remuneration”),
with liberty fo the Board of the Company to alter and vary the Terms of
Remuneration within the overall limits prescribed under Section 197 or Schedule V
af the Companias Act, 20413,

Remumeration.

1. Basic salary: Rs. 50000/ pm. and Board empowered to defermine the
ramuneration from time fo fima.

2. Perquisites and fixed allowances such as Pald day, Bonus, leave Encashment,
provident fund, gratuity and other allowances as may be approved by the Board
subect fo prevaiing policy of the Company;
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Kavit Industries Limited m

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT , nomwithstanding anything o the contrary herein
contained, where in any financial year dunng the cumency of fenure of Mr. Jayesh
Thakkar the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Comparny will
pay the remuneration by way of salary, perguisites and allowances as may be fixed
by the Board (which lerm shall be deemed lo nclude the Nominalion &
Remuneration Committee), subject to compliance with the applicable provisions. of
Schedue V of the Act and, f and lo the extenf necessary, with the approval of the
Central Government;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT . the Board be and i3 hereby authorised fo fake all
such sleps as may be necesssry, proper or expedient lo ghee effect fo this
Resolution.”

. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without medifications, the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOULVED THAT , pursuant to the prowvisions of sechon 61 and 13 and other
applicable provisions, f any, of the Companies Acl 2013 the Rules made
thereundar (including any stalutory modification{s) of re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) and such approvals as may be necessary and pursuant fo the
provisions of the Memorandum ard Arlicles of Association of the Comparny, the
existing Authorised Share Capital of the Company of Rs. 464500000/ (Rupees
Forty-gix crores and Forty-five lacs only) divided into 4,64, 50,000 (Four Crore Sixty-
four lacs and Fifty thousand only) Eguilly Shares of Rs 10 (Rupess Ten only) each,
be and is hereby increased fo Rs. 664500000 (Rupees Sixty-six Crores and
Fourly-five lacs Only) comprising of 6 64,50,000 (Six Crore and Sidy-four lacs and
Fifty thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ (Rupees Ten Only) each and the existing
Clawse V' of the Memorandum of Associalion of the Company relating lo the Share
Capital be substifuled with the following clavss:

V. The authonised share capital of the Company is Rs. 66,45 00,000 [Rupees Sixty-
six Crores and Fourty-five lacs Only) divided info 6,64, 50,000 (Six Crore and Sixty-
four lacs and Fifty thousand) Equify Shares of Rs, 1OV (Rupees Ten Only) each.’;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Lwectors of the Uompany be and is
hereby authorised lo lake all necessary action for giving effect to the above
resoiution and file relevamt eforms with the Registrar of Companies, as required
under the provisions of the Companias Acf, 2013."

. To eonsider and if thought fit, o pass, with or without modifications, the following
Resclution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in sccordance with Section 63 and other applicable prowvisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Share Capital &
Debentures) Rules, 2074 (including any stafutory modification(s) or re  enactment
thereof for the time being in foree), pursuance to Clause no. 200 of the Articlas of
Associgfion & the relevant provisions of the Memorandum of Association of the
Company and the recommeandation of the Board of Directors of the Company and
subject to the regulations issued by the Securilies and Exchange Board of India
(SEB), ncluding the Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2009 (as amended from time to fime) and
appiicable permissions, sanchions and approvals as may be required n this regard,
consant of the Members be and is heraby accorded to the Board of Divaclors for
capitalization of such sum as may be standing fo the credit of the Securities
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Premium Accouwnt or Capital Redemption Reserve or any other Reserve, as are
permissible fo be uliized for the purpose, as per the audited accounts of the
Company for the financial year ended 37 March , 2015 and that the said amount be

transferrad fo the Share Capital Account and be applied for issue and alfoiment of

around 1,55,13,.333 (One Crore Fifty-five lakhs Thirteen thousand Three hundred
and thirfy-three) Equity Shares of Rs. 104 (Rupees ten anly) each as Bonus Equily
Shares, credited as fully paid-up shares fo the holders of the existing equily shares

of the Company, whose names appear in the Register of Members maintained by
the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents and the List of Beneficial
Cwriers, as recenved from the Nafiona! Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Senvices (india) Limited (CDSEL), on such date ("Record Date”) as
may be fixed in this regard by the Board of Oirecto rs, in the proportion of 1{one)
aquity share for every 3(Three) existing Ffully paid-up eguity share held by the

Members and that the Bonus Shares so distributed shall, for all purposes, be
treated as an increase in the nominal amount in the Capital of the Company held by
each such member, and not 85 Ncome;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ssue of Bonus shares o Non-Resident
Shareholder(s) of the Company, ¥ any, shall be subject, a5 required, to the spproval
of the Reserve Bank of India under the provisions of Forelgn Exchange Management
Acl, 7999 and rules ard regulations made thereunder

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Bonus Shares s0 allofted shall rank pari passuin
all respects with fully paid-up Equity Shares of the Campany as existing on the
Record Date and shall be subject o the terms and condifions confained i1 the
Memaorandumn and Arlicles of Associalion of the Company;

RESQLVED FURTHER THAT no letter of altofment shall be issued in respect of the
Bonus Shares buf in fhe case of Members who hold Equity Shares in dematenalized
form, the Bonug Shares shall be credited (o the respective benaficlary accounts of
the Members with their respective Deposiory Parficipants and in the case of
Members who hold Equily Shares in physical form, the share cerificates in respact
of the Bonus Shares shall be dispatched, within such time as prescribed by law and
the refevant authorifies,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT [he Boand be and s hereby suthonzed, severally, o
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and fo take alf such steps as may be
necessary o give effect to the aforesaid resolution and o determine ail ferms and
condifions of the issue of bonus shares as they may in their absoluls discretion
deam fit.”

For and on behall of the Board
For, Kavit Industries Limited

Date: 31/08/2015

Place: Vadodara S0D/-
Jayesh R. Thakkar

Chairman

MName of the Company: Registered Office:

Kavit Industries Limited (formally known as Village Tundao, Taluka: Savii, Vadodoara

Atreva Petrochem Limited) Ag177s.

CIN: Website: www.atreyvapetrochem. coim

LAZT00GS 1HH0OPLCD 14682 Phone No,: 02652362000, 2361100

Email 1D: kavitindustrieslimitedo gmail com FAX:0265-2361551
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NOTES:

1.

5.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING [the Meeting] IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE ON POLL ON HIS BEHALF. A FROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY.

A person can act as proxy on behall of members not exceeding filty (50) and
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of
the Company.

A prosy fortn, in order to be effective, must be received at the Registered Office af
the Company's situated at Village Tundao, Taluke: Savli, Vadodara-321775, not
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting, A blank prosy form
is enclosed and can alsa be downloaded from the website of the company.

An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,
relating to the Special Business to be transacted al the meeting is annexed
hereto.

The Register of Members and Share Transler Books of the Company will remairn
closed from Friday, 18/09,/2015 to Frday, 2570972015 (both days inclusive].

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI} has mandated the
submizgsion of copy of PAN card to the Company, Depository Participants as the
case mayv be, Members holding shares in physical form should submit their PAN
details to the Company /Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

Members are requested 1o notily any change of address:

a) to their Depository Participants (DP) in respect of shares held in dematerialized

form, ancd;

b} To Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company- M/s. Link Intime India

Pvt. Ltd. B Tower, 102 B and 103,Shangrila Complex,lst Floor,Opp. HDFC
Bank,Near Radhakrishna Chhar RastaAkota, Vadodara 390020., in respect of
shares in physical form, to netify their change of address/residential
status/email-id, bank details ete., if any, under their signatures and gquoting
respective folio number.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due
diligence and notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any
member as soon as possible, Members are also advised not to leave their demat
account{s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained
from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.

Members are requested to bring their Chent ID and DP ID or Folio Numbers, as
may be applicable, at the meeting for eazy identification of attendance.

Corpotate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend
the Meeting are reguested to zend a certified copy of Beard resclution(s)
authorizing their reprezentative [ies) o attend and vote on their behalf at the
Meeting,

Members desirous of getting any information about the accounts and operations
of the Company are requested to submit their gqueries addressed to the

/6\
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15:

16.

Kavit Industries Limited m

Compliance Officer at least 7 days in advance of the meeting so that the
information called for can be made available at the meeting.

Kindly bring vour coples of the Antiual Report as sent by the Company at the
meeting.

Electronic copy of the Anntual Repoit for the financial Year ended on 31= March,
2015 is being sent to all the members whose email 1Ds are registered with the
Company / Depository  Participants{s) for communication purposes unless any
member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not
regiztered their email address, physical copy of the Annual Repert is being sent
in the permitted made.

Electronic copy of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company ifer
alfa indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip
and Proxy Form iz being gent to all the members whose email [Ds are registered
with the Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes
unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same, For members who
have not repistered their email address, physical copy of the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company infer alig  indicating the process and manner of
e-voling along with Attendance SHp and Proxy Form is being sent in the
permitted mode,

Members may also note that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the
Annual  Report for the financial Year ended on 319 March 2015 will alsa be
available on the Companys website www.atrevapetrochem comfor their
download. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available
at the Companys Registered Office situated at Village Tundao, Taluka: Sawvli,
Vadodara for inspection during normal business hours on working days. Even
after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to recefve such
communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post
free of cost. For any communication, the sharcholders may also send requests to
the Company's investor email id: Kavitindustrieslimitedia gmail.com,

Members are requested to bring their attendance slips duly completed and signed
mentioning therein details of their DP 1D and Client 10/ Folio No.

In caze of joint holders attending the Meeting, only 2uch joint holder who is
higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Voting through electronic means

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rutes, 2014, the
Company iz pleased to provide members facility to exercise their voting rights at
the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be
transacted through ‘remote e-voting” services provided by Central Depository
Services (India) Lid. (CDSL).

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

The remote e-voting period begins on 22nd September, 2015 at 9:00 am (1ST) and
ends on 240 September, 2015 at 5.00 pm (IST). During this period sharcholders®
of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form,
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Kavit Industries Limited m

az on the cut-off date of 18th September, 2015 |, mav cast their vole
clectronically. The e-voting module shall be dizabled by CDSL {for voting
thereafter.

Aomember whose name i3 recaorded in the register of members or i the register ol
heneficial owners as maintained by the Depositoryfics as on the cut-off date only
shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the
Meeting,

The sharehelders should log on o the e-vating website www evotingindia,com,

Click on Shareholders.
Now Enter your User 1D

For CLOSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
For NSDL: 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,

Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered
with the Compaty.

MNext enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login,

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to
www.evotingindia.com and woted on an earlier voting of any company, then your
exiating password is 1o be used.

Ifyou are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding Shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders)

Members who have not updated their PAN  with the
Company Depository Participant are requested to use the first two
letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the
PAN field.
In case the sequence number is less than & digits enter the
applicable number of 0% before the number after the first two
characters of the name in CAPITAL letters.

Eg. If your name 1= Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter
RADODOOOON in the PAN field.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the

company records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy
format.

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in

the company records for the said demat account or folio.

/g\
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Bank Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If

the details are not recorded with the depository or company please

Details enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details

field as mentioned in instruction [iv).

(vii)

(xi)

(i)

(xiii)

(xiv)

After entering these details appropriately, click on *SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical lorm will then directly reach the Compay
selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach
Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their
login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be
also used by the demat holders for woting for resolutions of any other company
on which they are cligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Chck on the EVSN for the relevanl “Kavit Industiies Lifmoled” on which Vou
choose to vote.

On the voling page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIFTION" and againist the
same the option “YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired.
The option YES implies that you Aszent to the Resolution and aption NO implies
that vou Dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK® il you wish 1o view the entire Resolution
retails.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vete on, click on "SUBMIT™. A
confirmation box will be displaved. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
“0K", else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL" and accordingly modify your
wnka.

Onee you "CONFIRM™ your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vole.

You can also take outl print of the voting done by you by clicking on *Click here
to print” option on the Voting page.

Il Dematl account holder has forpotien the same password then Enler the User
1D and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the
details as prompted by the system.

[xvui] Note for Non = Individual Shareholders and Custodians
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Kavit Industries Limited m

Non-Individual shareholders (e, other than Individuals, HUF, NEI ete.)

and Custodian are required to log on o wwwevotingindis com - and
register themselves as Corporate,

A scanned copy of the Hegistration Form bearing the stamp and sign of
the entity should be emailed to helpdesk evotingd cdslindia.com,

Aler receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using
the admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link
the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts should be mailed Lo h{:lgﬂf&l{.ﬂvﬂﬁngﬁfﬂEﬁhd[ﬂ.tﬁﬂ‘l
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote,

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Altormey (POA)
which they have issued m favour of the Custodian, if any, should be
uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verfy the
sAmE.

Those persons, who have aequired shares and have become Members of the
Company after the dispatch of Natice of the AGM by the Company and whose
names appear in the Register of Members or Register of beneficial holders as on
cut-off date i.e. 17hSeptember, 2015 shall view the Notice of the AGM on the
Company's website or on the website of CDSL, Such Members shall exercise their
voting rights through remote e-voting by following the procedure as mentioned
above or by voting at the AGM.

In ease you have any gueries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (*FAQs") and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com, under  help  section or  write  an email  to
helpdesk.evotingsicdslindia, com.

Mfs M. Buha & Co., Practicing Compeny Secretaries, Vadodara, has been
appointed as a Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-yoting and voting process at
the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. E-Voting 13 optional to the
shareholders, the shareholders can alternatively vote in the AGM by physically
attending the AGM. The facility for voting, through ballot paper shall also be
made availabie at the venue of the AGM. The members attending the meeting,
who have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be able to
exercise their voting rights at the meeting, The members who have already cast
their vote through remote e-voting may attend the meeting but shall not be
entitled to cast their vote again at the AGM. A Member can opt for only one mode
of voting i.e. either through e-voting or in physical form. If & Member casts
his/her vote by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and
the vate by ballot shall be treated as invalid.

The Voung Kesults along with the Consolidated Scrulinizer’s report shall be
placed on the Company's website and on the website of CDSL not later than
three days of conclusion of the AGM of the Company and communicated to the
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and other stock exchanges where the securities
of the Company being listed,

10 D>
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GEMERAL MEETING
STATEMENT FORMING PART OF THE NOTICE CALLING 29™ ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4:

Mr. Jayesh Thakkar continued as Managing Director of the Company since 28t
December, 2011 and puiting their dedicated efforts for the betterment of the
Company,

While considering academics [acet, Mr. Jayesh Thakkar is Commerce Graduate having
around 25 wvears of experience in various industries. He is associated with the
Company since year 2011, He has attained wide range of expertizse and resultant the
Company is performing well even in slack market conditions,

The approval of the members {5 being sought to the terms, conditions and stipulations
for the appointment of Mr. Javesh Thakkar as Managing Director and the
remuneration pavable to him. The terms and conditions proposed are keeping in line
with the remuneration package that is necessarv to continue to encourage good
professional managers with a sound career record to important position such as that
occupied by them.

The material terms of re-appointment and remuneration as contained in the letter of
appointment are given below:

Terms of re-appointment:
Mr. Jayesh Thakkar shall re-appointed as Managing Director w.e.f. 28% December,
2014 till the period end on 28" December, 2019,

Terms of Remuneration:

Monthly Remuneration by way of salary, dearness allowance, perquisites and other
allowances not exceeding of R, 50000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand Rupeez only) per
month subject to Section 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
applicable provisions and rule(s| framed thereunder, however, the Board may, at any
time, revise the salary and other terms & conditions for appointment in line with
referred provisions of the Act.

Perquisites:

i} Contribution of provided fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent
singly or put together are not taxable under the Income-tax Act, 1961;

ii} Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half & month’s salary for each completed
year of service;

iii) Encashment of Leave at the end of tenurne;

i) The Managing Director shall be entitled to other perquisites az are allowed to
executives in the Company based on the approval of the Board of Directors from
time o time.

Minimum Remuneration, calculated in accordance with provisions ol Schedule Vo of
the Companies Act, 2013 shall be paid in the event of logs or inadequacy of profits in
any financial year during their tenure as Managing Director of the Company,

Letter of appointment for renewal of terms of appointment and the Register
maintained in pursuance of Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 would be

C 11>
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available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company
during normal business hours on any working day upto and including the date of the
Annual General Meeting,

Mr. Jayesh Thakkar is interested in the resolutions as set out at Item No. 4 of the
Notice, which pertains to his reappeointments and remuneration payable to him.

Similarly, the relatives of Mr. Jayesh Thakkar may be deemed to be interested in the
resolutions set out at ltem Mo, 4 of the Notice, to the extent of their sharcholding
interest, if any, in the Company.

Bave and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in these resolutions.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice
for approval by the shareholders.

The detailed profle of Mr. Javesh Thakkar is sel oul separately i this report.

Item MNo. 5:

In order to enable the Company capitalization of reserves or profits by issuing fully
paid-up Bonus equity shares, the existing Authorised Share Capital may not be
sufficient for this purpose. It is therefore considered necessary to increase the
Authorised Share Capital of the Company to the extent mentioned in item No.5.

The provigions of the Companies Act, 2013, require the Company to seek the approval
of the members for increase in the Authorized Share Capital and for the alteration of
Capital Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company and accordingly
the Board recommends the relevant resolutions for the approval of the Members.

None ol the Directors of the Company or Key Managerial Personnel or their relalives
are, in any way, concerned or interested in the resclution.

Item No. 6:

The equity shares of your Company are listed and traded on the Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited. With a view to encouraging the participation of small investors by
making equity shares of the Company affordable, increasing the liquidity of the equity
shares and to expand the retail shareholder base, the Board in its meeting held on 31«
August, 2015 considered and approved a bonus issue of one(1) equity share for every
Three [3) equity share held, as on a record date a8 to be determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

The bonus issue of equity shares is subject to Members’ approval in terms of Section
63 of the Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable statutory and regulatory
approvals., Accordingly, the resolution set out at ltem No. 6 zeek Members® approval
for capitalization of the amount standing to the credit of securities premium |/ general
reserve | capital redemption reserve account, if any, and issue of bonus shares on the
terms and conditions set out in the resohation.

Mo Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or
interested in the REesolution of the Notice except to the extent of their shareholding in

12D
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the Company. The Board recommends the resolutions set forth it the Notice for the

approval of the Members.

Date: 31/08/2015
Place: Vadodara

Name of the Company:

Eavit Industries Lirmited |ﬁ,|1'|r|4:i|:.' lriown a1

Atreva Petrochem Limited)

CIN:
L231000GJ 19R0PLCO] 4Gt
Email 1D: kavitindustrieslimitedio pmail.com

For and on behalfl of the Board
For, Kavit Industries Limited

= L:'." -
Jayesh R, Thakkar
Chalrman

Registered Office:

Village Tundag, Taluka: Savli, Vadodara-
Jo177E

Website: www. atrevapetrochem.com

Phone Mo.: 0265-2362000, 2361100

FAX: BD2R5-2361551

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT /[ REAPPOIMNTMENT BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY AT THE ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (IN PURSUANCE OF CLAUSE 4% OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT)

Jayesh

Name of Director Wit Jayashbhal Raichandbhai

Thakkar Thakkar
Date of Birth 17/07/1993 01/06/1964
Date of appointment 12/03/2014 28/01/2011
Qualifications BBA B.Com
Experience 1 year 25 years
Names of other 1. Raghuvir 1. Pacific Finstock
Companies in which International Limited

Directorship is held

Private Limited
2. Shree Saibaba
Exim Private
Limited
3. N.A. Corporation
Private Limited

2. Natural Expo Agro
Industries Limited

3. Prabhav Industries
Limited

4. Jatan Developers
Private Limited

5. Look Vision
Infrastructure
Private Limited

6. Cameron Realty
Private Limited

7. Longseal
Machinary Private
Limited

8. Cameron
Constructions
Private Limited

9. Raghuvir
International
Private Limited

10. Kavit Green
Energy Private

Limited
No. of Shares held NIL 13,02,600
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Director's Report

Ta,

The Members,

Kavit Industries Limited

{Formerly known as Atreya Petrochem Limited)

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Keport on the business and operations

of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st March,
2015.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
(Stand Alane )

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
(Amt. in Rupeas)

Turnaver 74,33.691.81
Other Income 4,62,9603.64
Expenditure 1.31,37.,881.11
Profit|Loss] Before Taxes 7.08,774.34
Taxes expenses

Current Tax 58.,450.00

Deferred Tax NIL
Profit after Tax available for appropriation 7.00,524,54
Dividend NIL
Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 10,20,855.34 700,324,534

The Indian economy is witness of the downturn in all industries during the financial
vear 2014-15. Due to strugeling environment the turnover of the Company was
reduced considerably however due to conservative approach of the Company the
expenditures of the Company are also reduced substantially as compared to previous
financial year and the Company has earmed more than 1.5 times of profit against the
profit of previous financial vear.

No material changes and commitments occurred between the end of the financial year
and date of report which affects inancial position,

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Accounting Standard (AS) - 21 on
the consolidated financial statement read with AS - 23 on accounting for investment
in associates and AS - 27 on financial reporting of interesis in joint ventures, the
audited consolidated financial statement is provided in the Annual Report.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:
During the vear under review, the Company has incorporated a new subsidiary, Kavit
Green Energy Private Limited.

14D
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:
During the year & (six] Board Meetings were convened and held. The details of which
are given as under Corporate Governance.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In terms of Section 1345) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors state that:

i. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended
on 31st March, 2015, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
and there are no material departures for the same;

ii. The Directors hawve selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial vear and of the profit of the Company for the vear under
review:

iii. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and ather irrepularities;

iv.  The directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;

v. The directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating
effectively; and

vi. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
During the year the company has reappointed following persons as an independent
director in pursuance of the section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Kiran Jethalal Soni
Nikhil Pranay Pednckar
Amit Tarachand Shah
Jigar Premchand Motta

PN

Similarly, the following persons erstwhile appointed as an Additional Director and
their appointments were confirmed in last Annual General Meeting;

1. Chirag Vinedchandra Thalklkar
2. Hirenkumar Pravinsinh Rao
3. Kavit Jayeshbhai Thakkar
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In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Kavit Jayeshbhai Thakkar, Director of the company, retire by rotation
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered himself for re-
appointment, Your Directors recommend his re-appointment for your approval,

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the
Company confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed both
under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing
Apreement with the Stock Exchanges,

Company's policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other
matters provided under section 178(3] of Companies Act, 2013 is appended with
Corporate Governanoee Eeport and MGT-9.,

AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT:

Sheetal Samriya & Associates, Chartered Accountants, retire as Auditors of the
Company at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and heing eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. Your directors recommend their re-appointment.
They have furnished a Certificate to the effect that their appointment, if made, will be
in accordance with the limits specified in Section 139 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Auditors report and notes on financial statement as referred in their report are
self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditors” Report does
not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:
Details of loan, guarantee and investments covered under the provision of section 186
of Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

The Company usually carried-out contracts or transactions with related parties on
Arms length basis, thus, it doesn't attracts the provisions of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013. During the year under Consideration, the Company was not
entered into contracts or transactions with related parties.

DIVIDENDS:

In view of long term interests of the company, vour Directors do not recommend any
dividend.

INSURANCE:
Movable and fixed Assets are adequately insured.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

16 >
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Conservation of Energy
The Company does not have material information required under Section 134 (3)(m) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules,
2014 to offer and hence no particulars have been furnished.

Foreign Exchange Earning/Outgo
There were no foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

Your company has policy on risk management and your Management, from time-to-
time, identifies, analyses, evaluate and mitigate the industrial, economical, financial,
other rizsk emerges in the course of business.

BOARD EVALUATION:

Pursuant to the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement, the Nomination Committee has carried out an annual performance
evaluation of the Board as well as the working of its committees. The manner in which
the evaluation has been carried out has been explained in the Corporate Governance
Repaort.

REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Board has, on the recommendation of remuneration committee framed a policy for
selection and appeintment of directors, senior management and their remuneration,
The remuneration policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
The Company has constituted following Committees:
1. Audit Committee
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Composition and scope of work of such Committees is elaborated separately under the
Corporate Governance Report.

PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT:

Initially, the Company had issued convertible warrants of Hs, 40 Crores on preferential
basis, During the year, those warrants was converted into 4,00.00,000 equity shares
of Rs. 10000 each,

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
Company has annexed herewith as Annexure extract of Annual Return in MGT-9.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:
As per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the Management
Discussion and Analvsis, 8 appended to this report.

/1_7\
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Az per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, a separate
section on Corporate Governance practices followed by the company, together with a
certificate from the company's auditor/s confirming compliance, forms an integral part
of this report.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
The relationship between the workmen and staff remained cordial and harmonious
during the year and management received full co-operation from employees.

OTHER INFORMATION:

Your Directors hereby states that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of
the following items as there were no transactions on these items during the vear under
Feview:

1. The Provision of Section 135 of the Act with respect to Corporate Bocial
Reasponsibility [CSR) i3 not applicable to the Company, hence, there is no need to
develop policy on C5R and take initiative thereon.

2. The Company couldn® complied with Section 203, 204 of the Companies Act,
2013, howewer, it endeavor to comply the same in next financial year.

3. In order to conserve financial resources of the Company, none of the directors of
the Company drawn remuneration during the year hence it need not required to
disclose Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median to the emplovee’s
remuneration

4. The Company has not aceepted deposits during the year within the provision of
Section 134 (3)(qg) & Rule 8(5)(v) & {vi) of the Companies [Accounts)Rules, 2014,

3. Mo significant material orders were passed by the repulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future,

6. Your directors states that during the vear under review, there were no cases filed
pursuant to the sexual harassment of women at work place [Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,

7. In pursuant to the provisions of section 17709 & (10) of the Companies Act,

2013, a Vigill Mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns
has been established .

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors would like to thank clients, sharcholders, vendors, government
agencies, bankers & all other business associates for their continued support during
the year. We place on record our appreciation for the contributions made by the
emplovees at all levels,

For and on behalf of the Board

Date: 31/08/2015 sD/-
Place: Vadodara Jayesh R. Thakkar
Chairman
/1?
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VI. REMUNERATION OF MEECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A, Renmmneration fo Mangging Director, Whebe-time Directors andfor Manager;

SL Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total
no. Remuneration A B C D Amount
Gross salary - - - - -

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

1 | (b) Value of perquisites u/s -
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1901 - - - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary £ = 1
under section 17(3) Income- _ ﬂm‘@i ,t@'.}@@[ H@L@. H@

tax Act, 1901

2 | Stock Option

3 | Sweat Equity - - - - .
Commission - - - _

- as % of profit - - - - -
- others, specify - - - - -
5 | Others, please specify - - - - -
Total (A) - - - - -
Ceiling as per the Act - - - - -

B Kemaneration o otfer directors:

SIL Particulars of Mame of Directors

, Total Amount
no. Remuneration A B C D

Independent Directors

o Fee for attending board -
1 committee meetings

o Commission - - - - -

o Others, please specify - i

=
5
5

=00
Y
il
5

(it
3
g
®

Total (1) AN

Other Non-Executive
Directors

e Fee for attending board
committee meetings
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e Commission

®  Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B) = (14+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the
Act

0 REWINERATION TORKEY MANAGERIAL PERSCINNED GATHER THAN MIDAANALERSVTD

Key Managerial Personnel

SL no. Particulars of Remuneration

CEO

Company
Secretary

CFo

Total

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1901

1 (b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1901

(c) Profits in Tieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1901

Stock Option

[SSIIN V]

Sweat Equity

&~

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total

VL

PENALTIES S PUNESHMEYTS COMPOUNEING OF OFFEMNCES:

Section of the
Cinepanies Al

Briet

Type
L IMe=acriplinn

Ihtmiks of
Penalty !
Punkshment!
Compannding
Tees impased

Aantharity
(2 R LN
COURT]

Appeal made,
il any (jmive
Dhedails)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - -

Punishment

Compounding - -

[iate: 31/08/2015

Place: YVadodara

For au

nd on behalf of tk

50/
Jayesh R. Thakkar
Chairman

1€ Board
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNAMNCE

The directors present the Company’s report on Corporate Governance which sets out
systems and processes of the Company as set out in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement gnd some of the practices followed by the Company on Corporate
Governance for the financial year ended on 312 March, 2015,

SEBI vide its Circular No, CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/2 /2014 dated 17 April 2014 and
as subsequently amended by circular dated 15 September 2014 notified the revised
clause 49 of the Listing Agreement to be applicable to all listed companies with effect
from 1= October 2014.

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNAMNCE:

Corporate governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to
values and conduct aimed at enhancing an organization’s wealth pgenerating capacity.
This is ensured by taking ethical business decisions and conducting the business with
a firm commitment to values, while meeting stakeholders” expectations. Good
governance practices stem from the culture and mindset of the organization and at
KAVIT INDUSTRIES we are conumitted to meet the aspirations of all our stakeholders
and believes in adopting best corparate practices for ethical conduct of business. It is
well recognized that an effective Board of Directors is a pre-requisite for strong and
effective corporate governance, Our Board and Committees thereof are formed as per
requirement of Companies Act, 2013 read with listing agreement which oversees how
the Management serves and protects the long-term interests of all our stakeholders.
For effective implementation of the Corporate Govermance practices, KAVIT
INDUSTRIES has a well-defined policy framework, full filling the criteria of Companies
Act and any other Act applicable to the Company,

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

a. Composition of Board of Directors:

The Beard of KAVIT INDUSTRIES comprise of optimum combination of Exccutive
(Whole-time) and Non-Executive (Non whole-time) Directors. The composition of
the Board of Directors as on 31.03.2015 is given below:-

NAME CATEGORY
Jayesh Raichandbhai Thakkar Managing Director
Jigar Premchand Motta Independent Director
Kiran Jethalal Soni Independent Director
Nikhil Pranay Pednekar Independent Director
Amit Tarachand Shah Independent Director
Kavit Jayeshbhai Thakkar Director
Chirag Vinodchandra Thakkar Director
Hirenlkumar Ran Director

32>
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b. Board Meetings:

The Board of Directors oversees the overall functioning of the Company and has
set strategic goals in order to achieve its Vision, The Board defines the Company's
policy and oversees its implementation in attaining its goal. The Board has
constituted various committees as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
to facilitate the smooth and efficient fow of decision making process,

As per section 1653 of the Companies Act, 2013 none of the Director is holding
directorship in more than 10(ten] Public Limited Companies. As per Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement, none of the Independent Director is serving as an
Independent Director in more than T(seven) Listed Companies. None of the
Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committess or Chairman of
more than 5 Committees across all the companies in which he [ she is a Director.

The Board of Directors meets at least once in every quarter to approve the
financial results in compliance with the Listing Agreement and more often, if
necessity prevails.

During the year, six Board Meetings were held on 061 May 2014, 300 May 2014,
237 July 2014, 13" August 2014, 13% November 2014, and 13th February 2015,

c. Attendance of each Director at Board Meetings held during 2014-15 and last
Annual General Meeting:

No. of Board meetings Whether present
NAME attended during 2014-15 at the last AGM
Jayesh Thakkar 6 Yes
Jigar Premchand Motta 3 No
Kiran Jethalal Soni 3 No
Nikhil Pranay Pednekar 3 No
Amit Tarachand Shah 3 Yes
Kavit Jayeshbhai Thakkar 6 Yes
Chirag Thakkar 6 Yes
Hirenkumar Rao 4 Yes

d. [Independent Directors’ meeting:

In compliance with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and revised clause 49
of the Listing Agreement, the independent directors held their separate meeting on
24 March 2015, without the attendance of non-independent directors and
members of management, to inter alia:
i. review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a
whole:

ii.  review the performanece of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into
account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors;
23
(33>
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Maximum tenure of independent directors

The maximum tenure of independent directors is in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Formal Letter of appointment to independent directors:

The Company issues a formal letter of appointment to independent directors in the
manner as provided in the Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement. The terms and cenditions of appointment of independent directors will
available on the Company's website www.atrevapetrochem.com.

9. Board Business:

The normal business of the Board includes:

framing and overseeing progress of the Company’s annual plan and operating
framework:

framing strategies for shaping of portfolio and direction of the Company and for
corporate resource allocation; reviewing financial plans of the Company;
reviewing gquarterly and annual business performance of the Company;
reviewing the Annual Report and accounts for adoption by the Members;
reviewing the progress of various functions and businesses of the Company;
reviewing the functioning of the Board and its Committees;

reviewing the functioning of the subsidiary companies;

considering and approving declaration / recommendation of dividend,

reviewing and resolving fatal or serious accidents or dangerous occcurrences,
any materially significant effluent or pollution problems or significant labour
issues, if any;

reviewing the details of significant development in human resources and
industrial relations front;

reviewing details of foreign exchange exposure and steps taken by the
management to limit the risks of adverse exchange rate movement;

reviewing compliance with all relevant legislations and regulations and litigation
status, including materially important show cause, demand, presecution and
penalty notices, if any;

reviewing Board remuneration policy and individual remuneration packages of
Directors;

advising on corporate restructuring such as merger, acquisition, joint venture
or disposals, if any:

appointing Directors on the Board and Management Committes;

reviewing Corporate Social Responsibility activities of the Company;

reviewing details of risk evaluation and internal controls;

Teviewing reports on progress made on the ongoing projects:

34>
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h. Code of Conduct:

The Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the
Company has been laid down by the Board, which has been circulated to all
concerned persons. The Directors and Senior Management personnel of the
Company have affirmed compliznee with the provisions of the KAVIT INDUSTRIES
Code of Conduct for the financial year ended 31.03.2015.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
Currently there are 3 [three] Board Committees:

1. Audit Committee
2. MNomination and Remuneration Committes
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The terms of reference of the Board Committees are determined by the Board from
time to time. The role and composition of these committees, including the number of
meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance, are provided
below:

3.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committes has been constituted in line with the provisions of Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement and also meets the requirements of Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The members of the Audit Committee have requisite
financial and management expertise, The terms of reference and powers of the
Audit Committee are as mentioned in clause 49 11 (D) of the Listing Agreement
entered into with stock exchanges.

No. of audit

committee
o . meetings
Name Designation Category of director attandad
during 2014-
15
Jigar Motta Chairman Independent Director 6
Kiran Soni Member Independent Director 4
Nikhil Pednekar Member Independent Director 5
Amit Shah Member Executive Directar 4
35D
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a.

During the vear and as per the requirement of the Act, six Audit Committes
Meetings were held on 06 May 2014, 30% May 2014, 237 July 2014, 13k
August 2014, 13* November 2014, and 13th Febroary 2015.

Powers of Audit Committee:

The audit committee shall have powers, which should include the following:

1. Toinvestigate any activity within its terms of reference.

2. Toseek information from any employes,

3. Toobtain outside legal or other professional advice.

4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers
NECESEary.

Role of Audit Committes:

The role of the audit committee shall include the following:

1.

Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient
and credible.

Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required,
the replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit
fees,

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by
the statutory auditors.

Reviewing, with the mansgement, the annual financial statements before

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

*  Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to
be included in the Board's report in terms of sub-section (5) of section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013,

¢  Changes, il any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the
sarme.

e Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of
Judgment by management.

s Sipnificant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of
audit findings.

*  Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial
statements.

e Dizclosure of any related party transactions.

*  Oualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the guarterly financial statements before

submission to the board for approval.

5A. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of
funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue,
ete.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in
the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the

36 >
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monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of procesds of a public or
rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take
up steps in this matter,

. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal

auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems.

. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the

structure of the internal audit department. staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal
audit.

. [iscussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there

011,

. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors

into matters where there is suspected fraud or irrepularity or a failure of
internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the
board,

Dizcussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area
of concern.

.To look into the reasons for substantial defawits in the payment to the

depositors, debenture holders, shareholders [in case of non-pavment of
declared dividends) and creditors.

. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is

in existence,
Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee.

Subsidiary comparies

The Company has subsidiary viz. Kavit Green Energy Private Limited, which
however are not ‘material’ subsidiaries as preseribed under clause 49, Provisions
to the extent applicable as required under the revised clause 49 with reference to
subsidiary companies were duly complied.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial
statements, including the investments made by subsidiary, viz. Kavit Green
Energy Private Limited, to the extent applicable, A statement of all significant
transactions and arrangements entered into by the subsidiary companies, as
applicable, was regularly placed before the Board.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Independent Directors are not paid any remuneration except sitting lees bor
attending meeting of the Board or Committees thereof. However, the Board has
constituted a8 Remuneration Committer to approve certain perquisites for whole-
time Functional Directors and below Board level Executives, which are within the
powers of the Board as well as to approve performance related pay to the
executives of the Company. The Remuneration Committer of the Company meets
regularly as per the requirement of the Act and transacts the business
accordingly,

/37\
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Term of Referance:
Nomination:
The: duties of the Committes in relation o iks nominations function shall he:

i.  to be responsible for identifving and nominating, for the approval of the
Board and ultimately the sharcholders, candidates to fill Board vacancies
as and when they arise as well as putting in place plans for succession, in
particular with respect to the Chairman of the Board;

ii. to review regularly the Board structure, size, composition and make
recommendations to the Board of adjustments that are deemed necessary,
in order to ensure an adequate size and a well-balanced composition of the
Board and further ensure that a majority of the Beard is independent, and
to make determinations regarding independence of members of the Board;

iii. to keep under review the leadership needs of the orpanisation, both
executive and non executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability
of the Company to compete effectively in the market place;

iv.  to recommend to the Board whether to reappoint a director at the end of
their term of office;

v. to identify and recommend directors who are to be pur forward for
retirement by rotation;

vi. before appointment is made by the Board, to evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board, and in the hight of this evaluation
prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for a particular
appointment.

Remuneration:
The duties of the Committes in relation to its remuneration function shall be:

i.  to comsider and determine, based on their performance and such other
factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the
remuneration of the members of the Board:

ii. toapprove the remuneration of other members of the senior management of
the group;

iii.  in relation to the above, the Committee shall at all times give due regard to
publizshed or other available information relating to pay, bonuses and other
benefits of executives in companies which are comparable to the Company.

Compesition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

Following Directors comprises in Nomination and Remuneration Committes

CATEGORY OF No. of meetings

NAME DESIGNATION attended during
DIRECTOR 2014-15
Jigar Motta Chairman Independent Director 1
Kiran Soni Member Independent Director 1
38D
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Nikhil Pednekar Member Independent Director 1
Amit Shah Member Executive Director 0

Remuneration Policy

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Cormmittee has framed a Remuneration Policy, providing

(a) criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of directors and

(b) & policy on remuneration for directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees,

d. Remuneration to directors

33

Dretails of remuneration paid/payable to directors during 2014-15 are provided in
the annexure to the Directors' Report in Form MGT-9,

Performance evaluation of Independent and BOD

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49 of the Listing
Apreement, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own
petformance, and that of its Committees and individual directors. Manner in which
formal annual evaluation was made by the Board of its own performance and that
of its Committees and directors is given below:

» Rating sheets were filled by each of the directors towards the end of the year
with regard to evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees and
Directors (except for the director being evaluated) for the year under review,

* A consolidated summary of the ratings given by each of the directors was
then prepared, based on which a report of performance evaluation was
prepared by the Chairman in respect of the performance of the Board, its
Committees and Directors during the vear under review.,

* The report of performance evaluation so arrived at was then noted and
discuszed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board at
their meetings held in March 2015,

* As per the report of performance evaluation, the Board shall determine inter
alia whether to continue the term of appointment of the independent
directar.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

The Shareholders'f Investors Grievance Committee (S1GC) examine the grievances
of shareholders/investors and act as the system of redressal of the same. It also
approves issuance of share certificates, The Company accords top prierity to
resofve complaints /grievances gqueries of shareholders within a reasonable period
of time.

39>
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a. Details of Shareholders Complaints:

DETAILS OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED NOS.

Number of shareholders Complaints
received from D1 /042014 to 3170372015
Number of Complaints not solved to the

satisfaction of the shareholder 0
Number of pending complaints as on 0
a1/03/2015

b. Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee;
NAME DESIGNATION CATEGORY OF DIRECTOR
Jigar Motta Chairman Independent Director
Kiran Soni Member Independent Director
Nikhil Pednekar Member Independent Director
Amit Shah Member Executive Director

During the year under review there occur no such matters which require the
meeting to be conducted of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. Hence no
meetings were held.

4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

he Annual General Meetings of the Company were held at Village Tundao, Taluka
Savli, Vadodara-391773, Gujarat, where the Registered Office of the Company is
situated. The details of the AGM held for the past three years are as under:-

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Date 29th September, 30th September, 23rd September,
2012 2013 2014
Time 11:00 A M. 11:00 A.M. 09:00 A.M.
No. of Special
Resolutions Nil 1 (one) Nil
Passed
40 D
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5. DISCLOSURES:

Disclosure of Material Transactions: Related Party Transaction

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies
Act. 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement during the financial year were in
the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and do not
attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, There were no
materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year
which were in conflict with the interest of the company. Suitable disclosure as
required by the Accounting Standards (AS-18) has been made in the notes fo the
Financial Statements by the Auditor/s of the Company.

Details of non-compliance during the last three years:

The Company has complied with the necessary requirements and no major
penalties were enforced on the Company by Stock Exchanges/SEBI or any other
statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three
years except nominal amount of penalty imposed by Bombay Stock Exchange for
delay reporting,

Code of Conduct:

The Company has adopted 8 code of conduct for its directors and  designated
senior manapement personnel. All the Goard members and senior management
personnel have agreed to follow compliance of code of conduct.

Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has framed a whistle blower policy wherein the employees are free
to report any improper activity resulting in violations of laws, rules, regulations or
code of conduct by any of the emplovees, to the Competent Autherity or Chairman
of the Audit Committee, as the case may be. Any such complaint is reviewed by
the Competent Authority or Chairman of the Audit Committee. The confidentiality
of thoze reporting violations shall be maintained and they shall not be subjected to
any disctiminatory practice. No employes has been denied aceess 1o the Audit
Committee,

6. GEMERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

Annual General Meeting

Date: 235%™ September, 2015
Time:  10:00 AM
Venue: Village- Tundao, Taluka Savh, Vadodara-391775, Gujarat.

@
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Financial Calendar for 2014-15 to approve quarterly [/ annual financial

results:

Unaudited results for the quarter ending

on 30th June 2014 13/08/2014
Unaudited results for the quarter ending

on 30th September 2014 ISyl
Unaudited results for the guarter ending [P
on 30th December 2014 13/02/2015
Audited results for the quarter ending an 29/05/2015

d1st March 2015

C.

Book Closure Dates:

187092015 to 2570972015,
(both davs inclusive)

d. Listing on Stock Exchanges:
Bombay Stock Exchange Lid,
Vadodara Stock Exchange Ltd.
Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Lid.
e.  Corporate ldentity Mumber (CIN): The Corporate [dentity Number
(CIN) allotted to the Company by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs [MCA) is
LZ23100GJ1990PLCO14692,
f.  Stock Code at BSE: 524444
g. ISIN: INEX1IMO1014
h.  Stock Market Data;
BSE Sensex
Maonth High Low Mo, of Shares High Low
Apr-14 9.40 9.40 300 22,939.31 22,197.51
May-14 10.25 7.67 11,469 25,375.63 22,277.04
June-14 9.74 9.25 1,051 25,725.12 24,270.20
July-14 10.00 7.01 20,179 26,300.17 24,892.00
Aug-14 13.33 7.68 37,908 26,674.38 25,232.82
Sep-14 17.56 13.99 13,774 27,354.99 26,220.49
Oct-14 16.50 14.95 2,450 27,894.32 25,910.77
Nov-14 14.65 10.26 1,285 28,822.37 27,739.56
Dec-14 10.77 7.13 3,801 28,809.64 26,469.42
Jan-15 9.04 6.76 7,249 29,844.16 26,776.12
Feb-15 11.07 9.00 12,712 29,560.32 28,044.49
Mar-15 14.50 10.92 2,085 30,024.74 27,248.45
/4_2\

&



j-

k.

Registrar & Transfer Agents (R & T):

Kavit Industries Limited ﬂl_

M /=, Link Intime India Pvt, Ltd,

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,
L.B.5. Marg, Bhandup (w), Mumbai-
400078,

Tel,: [22] 25963838,

Fax: [22) 25946909,

E-mail: mt. helddeskiolinkintime.co.in

Distribution ot shareholding as on 31st March 2015

Range of No. of % to tatal No. of shares % to total
Holding shareholding  shareholders ' ghares
1-500 3761 75.2050 1035482 2.2292
501-1000 738 14.7570 656040 1.4124
1001-2000 269 5.3789 412146 0.8873
2001-3000 73 1.4597 186960 0.4025
3001-4000 36 0.7199 131172 0.2824
4001-5000 22 0.4399 106294 0.2288
5001-10000 35 0.6999 263018 0.5662
10001 & above 67 1.3397 43658888 93.9911

TOTAL 5001 100.0000 46450000 100.0000

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2015:

Category MNo. of shares held % of total shares
Promoters& Promoters 18465000 39.75
group
Mutual funds 140000 0.30
Other Bodies Corporate 24152086 52.00
NRI/OCBs
(other than promoters) 8200 0.02
Indian Public 3684144 7.93
Others(Clearing Members) 570 0.00
TOTAL 46450000 100
Ereak up of shares in physical and Demat Segment as on st March 2015

Segment No. of shares held % to total shares

Physical 3240400 6.98

Demat 43209600 93.02

TOTAL 46450000 100
/4_3\
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Address for Cormespondence: M /s, Link Intine India Pvt. Lid.
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (w), Mumbai-400078,
Tel.: (22) 25963838,
Fax: (22) 25940064,

E-mail; mt helddeskimlinkintime co.in

Project Location: Tundao Anjesar Road Village Tundao,
Taluka Savh, Vadodara-391775, Gujarat.

For and «n behalf of the Hoard

Diate: 31/08/2015 any
Place: Yadodara Jayesh R. Thakkar
Chairman
@
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Ta,
The Members,
HKAVIT INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by KAVIT
INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the financial year ended 2014-15 as stipulated in Clause 49
of the Listing Agreement of the Company with the Stock Exchanges.

The compliance ol condifions of Corporate Governance 1z the responsibility of the
Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the said Clause. [t is neither an audit nor an expression
of opinion on the financial statements of the Company, We further state that such
complianee is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

In our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated in Clause 49 of the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

For Sheetal Samriya & Associates
Chartered Accountants,
[Firm Registration No.: 01 1478C)

S0y -

Abhitesh Dubey

Partner

(Membership No.: 147923]
Vadodara, 315t August, 2015
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CEQICFO CERTIFICATION

Ta,
The Members,
KAVIT INDUSTRIES LIMITED

I hereby confirm that all the members of the Board and Senior Management have
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct. The Chairman and CEO have issued
requisite certificates to the Board pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

For, Kavit Industries Limited

Date: 31/08/2015
Place: Vadodara
sD/-
Jayesh R. Thakkar
Chairman

CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLIANCE

To,
The Members,
KAVIT INDUSTRIES LIMITED

As provided under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the
Board Members and the senior personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct for the year ended on 31st March, 2015,

For, Kavit Industries Limited
Date: 31/08/2015

Place: Vadodara
sD/-
Jayesh R. Thakkar
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The management of Kavit Industries Ltd, presents the analysis of the Company for the
vear ended on 31st March, 2015 and its outlook for the future, This outlook 1s based
on assessment of the current business environment. [t may vary due to future
economic and other developments both in India and abroad This Management
Discussion and Analysis (“MD & A") of Kavit Industries Ltd. for the year ended on 31st
March, 2015 contains financial highlights but does not contain the complete financial
statements of the Company. [t should be read in conjunction with the Company’'s
audited financial statements for the vear ended on 31st March 2015,

The Indian Economy snapshot:

The Indian economy in 2014-15 has emerged as one of the largest cconomics with
promising cconomic outlook on back of controlled inflation, rse in domestic demand,
increase in investments, decline in oil prices and reforms among others.

Central  Statistics Office (C50) and the
government will tell you the growth rate was Growth Dehate
7.3%, while if you believe the Reserve Bank of =,

! i = 6767 B4 ge56 6175
India (REI}, it was a tad lower at 7.2%. s =m Sl =g =§
The problem gets serious if you look at the 0 =l =i
fourth quarter (January-March) number. RBI al Y Q3 Qs
would like you to believe that the economy
decelerated to 6.1% in the fourth quarter from GOP (Market Prices! GV {Basic Prices)

6.8% in the previous quarter, while C30 will
tell you that the economy actually accelerated to 7.5% from 6.6% in the third quarter.

But just don't jump to blame EBI vet. The problem is, while C50 would like you to
read GDP at market prices data, EBI believes the gross value added [GVA) at basic
prices data availlable in CS0 release are more useful,

Source: C50

F574 {Fsc-+|——— .2
0P (it P, | — .

o) ¥ (1] .8 T 1.2 74

m2014-15 m2013-14

Petrochemical Industry in India:

India's petrochemical industry has been one of the fastest growing industries in the
Indian economy. Petrochemicals are the dervatives of crude oil and natural gas,
Olefing (ethylene, propylens & butadiene) and Aromatics (benzene, toluene & xylenes)
are the major building blocks from which most Chemicals and Petrochemicals are
a7
470
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produced. They are used in dyes, synthetic fibres, rubbers, plastics, pharmaceutical
bulk drugs, industrial appliances, packaging industry, detergents (surfactants),

Crude oil price had been on the rise since 2004 and traded for nearly $139 per barrel
al its peak in mid-2008. However by midyear 2014, prices began to slowly collapss
from over $ 103 per barrel to below 3 60 per barrel, as oil production in non-OFEC
countries [especially the Unifed States) rose and global demand slowed. Markets are
impacted significantly during sharp price fluctnations, creating a cloud of uncertainty
in upstream and downstream investments.

The Indian basic petrochemicals market has grown at 8 Compounded Annual Growth
Rate (CAGR) of 11%. Petrochemical sector is one of the fastest growing segments with
a growth rate of 13%, which 13 more than twice of growth of India's gross domestic
product ({GDF), and also the global growth rate in petrochemical space which s
stagnant at 6%, With the growth of India petrochemical industry, it holds the share of
around 20% of the total global produce of petrochemical related products.

About Kavit:

KAVIT was established to manuiacture vanous petrochemical downstream products
such as specialty oils, petroleum sulphonates, solvents, ete. for industrial applications
such as rubber, leather, ink and paint industries. We market and sell cur products
under the Brand “Ecrol Lubricants”. We have an up to date processing plant situated
at Tundav Village in Gujarat on an eight acre plot. Our plant is classified as Mini-
Refinery to process crude oil and hydrocarbons to various end products.

Ecrol is a well-entrenched brand in industrial oils. Ecrol products are manufactured to
mect the norms laid down by BIS, APl and JASO. High Quality Standards have been a
critical element in the marketing strategy of Ecrol to capture a sizeable share in the
domestic market in a short span of time. We are focused of delivering the best quality
at an affordable price and continuous up-gradation.

Financial Performance
{Rupess in Crores)

Particulars Mar 2015 Mar 2014

Net Sales 0.62 0.74
Other Income 0.42 0.65
Total Incame 1.04 1.39
Total Expenses 0.89 1.31
Operating Profit 0.15 0.08
Met Profit 0.10 0.07
Equity Capital 46.45 6.45
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Financial Representation

139 L3 Kavit Industries Limited key

Products  Revenue Sepments
-89 inchude Lubricants which

®2013-14 | contributed Rs, 0074 Cr. to Sales
Value (100.00% of Total Sales|, for

=
%

.04

-

Rupees (in crores)
<
(Sa}

0.070.1
0 ADLLS the vear ending 31 March 20104.
Total  Total Exp. Net Profi For the Financial year ended on
Income 31st March 2013, the company

has reported a Standalone sale of
Rs. 0.62 Cr. Company has reported net profit after tax of Rs. 0.10 Cr. for Financial
wear 2014-15 which has increased as compared to Net Profit of Rs. 0007 Cr. in
financial year 2013-14. Company was successful in reducing its total expenditure
from Rs, 1.31 Cr. o Rs, 0,80 Cr. during the financial vear 2014-15.

History

The Kavit Industries Limited was originally incorporated with the name Jal Hi Power
Petrochem Ltd, a public limited company and got listed at BSE in 1992, The name of
the company was later on changed to Atreva Petrochem Limited on 21 September
2000, During the financial year, the Company has again changed its name to Kawvit
Industries Limited with the compliance of applicable provisions of Companies Act and
SEBT Act.

Product line

Your Company produces many products like ERL 15W40 (API-CF4), APL20W40 [API-
CF), ECY 4T - OIL (API-SL], ECY 2T (API-TC), ERL GEAR EP90 (GL-4), ERL GEAR
EP140 |GL-4), and many others which can be used for equipment's like Auto, Car
LMV, Trucks, Buses, Excavators, Tippers & Dozers Fitted with Tata, Ashok layland,
Iveco, Hino engines as well as two wheeler, three wheeler, LMY, Commercial vehicles,
Tractors, MUV such as Safari, Scorpio. Sumo ete. & heavy-duty commercial vehicles.
A brochure of our products is available on our website, www_atreyapetrochem,com,

Opportunities.

Major industry players are analyzed through a company overview, analysis of business
segments, a look at their strategies; the Petrochemicals Industry in India is a complete
profile of this growingly competitive industry in India that is fast making its presence
felt across the world.

The global market for lubricating oil and greases is expected to reach 10 bn gallons by
the year 2017, says the latest report titled “Lubricating Oilz and Greases: A Global
Strategic Business Repaort” by Global Indusiry Analysts.

T IR
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The demand for lubricants further increases with new vehicle sales, increasing vehicle
population and increased focus and spending on maintenance are driving demand for
automotive lubricants, inereasing activity in the worldwide manufacturing industry is
benefiting the market for industrial lubes including hydraulic fluids and process oils.

Petrochemicals are widely used in various end use industries such as construction,
automobile and packaging. Therefore, growth in these end use industries is one of the
major factors driving the global petrochemicals market. Abundant availability of raw
materials in the Middle East is another factor boosting the petrochemicals market,
Government initiatives in India and China for establishing petrochemical complexes
are also expected to drive the market for petrochemicals, However, shift towards bio-
bazed chemicals coupled with environmental izsues arising due to usage of various
petrochemicals is projected to hamper market growth during the forecast period.

Threats:

The Indian petrochemical industry taces a number of challenges for sustained growth,
putting India at a competitive disadvantage in the competition with China, India's
ethylene capacity is far smaller than China's and is unlikely to rise above its Asian
rival's levels in the next 5-7 years, This will make it impossible for India to develop
applications  further downstream. Other major issues faced by the I[ndian
petrochemical industry are lack of low cost feedstock and dependence on western
countries for technology.

A steep rise in raw material costs on account of a drastic hike in crude oil prices may
affect the profit marging of the company, Changes in Government policies, especially
regarding import of Base 0il will have an adverse impact on the performance of the
Company. However, considering the multifarious purposes for which the Base Oil is
used and the domestic supplies are not adequate to meet the demestic Demand, the
possihbilities for such adverse changes in Government policies appear to be remote.

Risks and concerns

The lubricant market is highly competitive and consists of a large number of players
including the state owned oil companies, large multinational players as well as local
manufacturers. Besides, there are various regional players as well with small
capacities, Aggressive pricing or discount strategies from the market leaders or other
players, including new players, might have an adverse impact on us. [ntense
competition is expected to continue in the market, presenting us with varous
challenges in our ability to maintain growth rates and profit margins. If we are unable
to meet these competitive challenges, we could lose market share to our competitors
and experience an overall reduction in our profits,

e D
(20 >
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Environmental Risks

All phases ol the oil business present environmental risks and hazards, As a resull,
they are subject to environmental regulation pursuant to a complex blend of federal,
provineial, and municipal laws and regulations. The Company believes that it is in
comphiance with current applicable environmental rules and repulations.

Financial Risks

Financial risks associated with the petroleum industry  include [uctuation in
commoedity prices, interest rates, and currency exchange rates and profitability of the
Company depends on the prices and availability of the base oils. The prices of base oil
have increased during the last year and bave resulted in corresponding increase in
cost of production. However, as a general practice in the industry, the higher input
costs are paszed on to the customers.

Operational Risks
Operational risks include competitive envirenmental factors, reservoir performance
uncertainties and dependence upon third parties for commocdity transportation &
processing and 8 complex regulatory environment. The Company closely follows the
applicable government regulations. The Company carties insurance coverage (o
protect itzelf against those potentiad losses that could be economically insured against.

Imternal Control Systems and their Adeguacy:

Your Company maintains an adequate and effective Internal Control  system
commensurate with its size and complexity, We believe that these internal control
systems provide, among other things, a reasonable assurance that transactions are
executed with management authorization and that they are recorded in all material
respects to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with established
accounting principles and that the assets of your Company are adequately
safe-guarded against significant misuse or loss. An independent Internal Audit
function iz an important element of your Company's internal control system. The
intermal control system is supplemented through an extensive internal audit program
and pericdic review by management and audit committee.

Human Kesources:

The company has been utilizing the available human resources in the most effective
manner to improve procduction and productivity with minimum recruitmenis, The
Company recognizes the importance and contribution of its human resources for its
growth & development and values their talent, integrnty and dedication. Company
offers a highly entrepreneurial culture with a team based approach that we believe
encourages growth and motivates its employees, The Company has been successful in
attracting and retaining key professionals and intends to continue to seek fresh talent
to further enhance and grow our business.

Fawr mned e bwehall el Phe R
Dizte: 31/08/2015 s0y-
Place: Vadodara Jayesh R, Thakkar
Chalrmmn
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Financial Statements and Notes
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Kavit Industries Limited
(Formeny known &g Alreya Petmochem Limied|

Report on the Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying fnancial Statement of Kavil Industries Limited (Formerly
known as Atreya Petrochem Ltd.] which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015, and
the statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Companys management s responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that gve

a true ard fane view of the Anancial position, Tinancial performance and cash fow of the company in
accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 [Fthe Act™) and in accordance with the accounting principles genecadly acoepted
in India. This regponsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal contral
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view

and are  free  from  materisl misstatement, whether due to fraud of  errar

Auditor's Responsibility

Ot responsibility is to express an opinion on these finandal statements based on our awdit, We
conducted our audit n accordance with the Standards on Aunditing issued by the Institute of
Charered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical reguiraments

and plan and perform the audit to obrfain reagzonahle assurance ahout whether the financial

sratements are free from marerial misstarement.

An audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, inchuding the
agsessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to rand or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor consiwlers intermal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design awdit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit alse includes evaluating the
appropriateness of acoounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by managenent, a& well as evaliating the overall presentation of the inancial statements,

We helieve that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a bagis

for our audit opindon,

By Y
(22



Kavit Industries Limited m

Financial Statements and Notes
Independent Auditor’s Report

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Onancial statements give the informetion required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the acobunting principles generally scocepted in India:
a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015
subjoct o below gqualification;
Dunng the current year company has issuwed 4.00,00, 000 prefersnce shares of R515 each at a
premism of Bs8 fully comanible imo equily shares, but has not incregsed iz Authonzed Capita
by 40.00.00, 000,
b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date ; and

c) imthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, the cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

Report on other legal and Regulatery Reguirement
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2003 [“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (#A] of section 227 of the Act, we give In

the Annexure a statement on the matters specthed in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by section 22713) of the Act, we report that:
2) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and beliel were necesaary for the purpose of our audit,
b) In our opinion proper books of account a8 required by lew have been kept by the Company
g0 far as appears from our examination of those books,
c) The Balance Sheet, and Statermnent of Profit and Loss, dealt with by this Report are in
agrecment with the books of account.
d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, and Statement of Profit and Loss, comply with the
Accounting Standards referred to in subsection {3C) of section 211 of the Companics Act,
1956.
e) Om the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
Mareh 31, 2015, from being appointsd as a divector in terms of clauae (g) of sub-acetion (1]
of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956,
For Sheetal Samriya & Associates
Chartered Accountants,
(Firm Registration Mo.: 011478C]
SD/-
Abhitesh Dubey
Partner
(Membership Mo.: 147923
Vadodara, 30 May. 2013
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Financial Statements and Notes
Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report

{Referrad to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

1l

(ii)

(i)

iii]

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business/ activities/ results fduring the year,
clavse feli), )bl xix) of paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In Respect of its Foed ASSets:

(&} As informed to us, the Company s in the process of compiling records te showing full
particulars including quantitative details and situatien of fixed assers.

[bj As explained to us, fixed assets, according to the practice of the Company are physically
verified by the management at reasonable intervals, in a phased verification-programmae,
which, in our opinion, is reasonahle, lsoking to the size of the Company and the nature of
its business. As informed t0 us, no materiad discrepancies  have been noticed on
verification;

[c) The Fiwed Assete disposed off during the year. in our opinion, do not constitute a
suhstantial part of the fixed agsets of the company and such disposal has, in our opinion,
rot affected the godng concern status of the company.

In Respect of its Inventony:

[} As informed 10 us, the lnveniory of Finished and sermi-finished goods and raw materials at
waorks were physical verified by the management ot reasonable ntervals during the vear, In
our opinion, having regard to the nature and location of steck, the frequency of verification
is reasonable.

(b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management were
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and nature of its business.

[¢) In our opinion and according 0 the information and explanatons given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of inventory, and no material discrepancy wers
noticed on physical verification.

The Company has granted loans to 2Zecompanies andlisted in the register maintained under
Sectlon 301 of the Companies Act, (956, The year balance of loans granted to these was
11577 Lace. (PY.T.115.77 Lacs.)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and
condition of loan given to the. parties coversd wnder in the register maintained under section
301of the Companies Act, 1956 are ot prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no repayment schedule has been
specified and accordingly the question of regularity in payment of principal amount and
interest wherever applicable dors not arise. However the said loan is repayable on demand.,

The Company has taken unsecured lpans from 4 companies listed in the Register maintained
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, The year balance of loans taken from these
was T 100,20 Lacs. [PY, . 202,53 Lacs)

In respect of above Loans taken, no repayment schedule has been specified with regard to the
Interest | Repayment or any other terms and conditions,

A N
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Financial Statements and Notes
Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report

[#v]

[}

I our epinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 15 an
adequate internal control sysiem commensurate with the slze of the Company and the nature
of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of poods and
services, Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
and aceording to the information and explanations given (o us, we have neither come across,
mor have been informed of, any continuing fulure to correct major wealknesses i the aforesaid
internal control system,

According to the informaton and explanations given to s, the details of transaction that
needed to be entered in the register in pursuance of section 301 of the Company Act. 1956,
have been g0 entered.According to information and explanations given to us, the transactions
of purchase and sale of goods /services made in pursuance of such contracts or arreRgements
have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to prevailing market prices at
the relevant time.

Vi) The Company has not accepted deposits from other corporate which attracting the provisions of

[vii)

(viii)

section 584 and 5844 of the Companies Act, 1956, and the rules framed there under.

The systemn of intermal audit of the Company needs to be strengthened and commensurate
with the aize and nature of ite business.

In respect of statutory duwes:

{a) According to the information, explanation and records verified by us the Company has
generally been regular in depositing Income Tex, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax,
Custom duty, Excise Duty, Cess, other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities. We are informed that the company intends to obtains exemption
from Provident Fund, Employees state insurance Act.

{B] There were  no undisputed amounts payable in reapect of Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Wealth Tex., Service Tax, Excise Duty, Custom Duty,Cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as &t 31March 2015 for a period of more than six months for the date
they become payable.

el

{d) Details of dues of [ncome Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custorn Duty, Excise
Duty and Cess which have not been deposited as on 31 March, 2015 on account of
disputes are given below:

MNama of the Statue Nature of Forum where Period to Amount
Dues Dispute is which amount Invaolved
panding relates [Amount in z)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax | Tribunal A.Y.1999-2000 16,64,300
Income Tax | Tribunal A.Y.2000-2001 1,41,41,065
Income Tax | Assistant AY.1995-1996 3,786
Commissioner

55 >
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Financial Statements and Notes
Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report

Income Tax | Assistant A.Y.2003-2004 12,820
Commiszinner

Income Tax | Assistant A.Y.2004-2005 5,781
Commissinner

X

%)

[xii]

i)

[xi%]

[xv)

[sevi]

(R

Accumitlated Jossez at the end of fnancial vear ended on 319 March, 2015 st
1,22,03,067.15/- which does not exceed 50% of its net worth and it has not incurred cash
losses in the financial vear ended on the date and in the immediately preceding financial Year

The Companty is dealing in o trading in share, securities, Debenture or other investment. The
Company hss maintgined proper records: of the transactions snd contracts in respect of
dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments and timely entries
have been made therein, Further such securities have been held by the Company in its own
name ar are in the process of transfer in its own Company name.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not piven any
guarantee for loans taken by others from hanks or financial institutions.

.ﬂm:mrding Lo the information and EHP]EIJ'IEI.[W.I"IS gi'r‘&ﬂ o us and as per records made availabie
for our verificetion, the Company has not taken any torm loan during the year.

In our eplnion and according to the mformation and explanation given to us and overall
examinaton of the balance sheet of the company, we report that funds raised on short term
hasiz have, prima facie, not been used during the vear for long term investment.

A% the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year fo parties
and companics covered in the Register mamtained under Section 300 of the Act, the
provisions of clause 4{xviii] of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Cornpany has not raized any meney by public issue during te vear,

To the best ol our knowledge and according 1o the inlormaton and explanations given Lo e,
no frend by the Company and e meterial fraud was notoed or reported duning year.

For Sheetal Samriya & Associates
Chartered Accountants,
{Firm Registration No.:011473C)

SD/-

Abhitesh Dubey

Partner

Membership No.: 147923
Vadodara, 30 May, 2015.




Kavit Industries Limited m

Financial Statements and Notes
Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even data)

1l

(ii)

(i)

iii]

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business/ activities/ results fduring the year,
clavse feli), )bl xix) of paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In Respect of its Foed ASSets:

(&} As informed to us, the Company s in the process of compiling records te showing full
particulars including quantitative details and situatien of fixed assers.

[bj As explained to us, fixed assets, according to the practice of the Company are physically
verified by the management at reasonable intervals, in a phased verification-programmae,
which, in our opinion, is reasonahle, lsoking to the size of the Company and the nature of
its business. As informed t0 us, no materiad discrepancies  have been noticed on
verification;

[c) The Fiwed Assete disposed off during the year. in our opinion, do not constitute a
suhstantial part of the fixed agsets of the company and such disposal has, in our opinion,
rot affected the godng concern status of the company.

In Respect of its Inventony:

[} As informed 10 us, the lnveniory of Finished and sermi-finished goods and raw materials at
waorks were physical verified by the management ot reasonable ntervals during the vear, In
our opinion, having regard to the nature and location of steck, the frequency of verification
is reasonable.

(b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management were
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and nature of its business.

[¢) In our opinion and according 0 the information and explanatons given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of inventory, and no material discrepancy wers
noticed on physical verification.

The Company has granted loans to 2Zecompanies andlisted in the register maintained under
Sectlon 301 of the Companies Act, (956, The year balance of loans granted to these was
11577 Lace. (PY.T.115.77 Lacs.)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and
condition of loan given to the. parties coversd wnder in the register maintained under section
301of the Companies Act, 1956 are ot prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no repayment schedule has been
specified and accordingly the question of regularity in payment of principal amount and
interest wherever applicable dors not arise. However the said loan is repayable on demand.,

The Company has taken unsecured lpans from 4 companies listed in the Register maintained
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, The year balance of loans taken from these
was T 100,20 Lacs. [PY, . 202,53 Lacs)

In respect of above Loans taken, no repayment schedule has been specified with regard to the
Interest | Repayment or any other terms and conditions,
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Financial Statements and Notes
Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report

[v]

[}

In our epinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 18 an
adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature
of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of poods and
services, Furiher, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
and aceording to the information and explanations given (o us, we have neither come across,
mor have been informed of, any continuing falure to caocrect major wealknesses i the aforesaid
internal control system,

According to the informeton and explanations given to us, the details of fransaction that
needed to be entered in the register in pursuance of section 301 of the Company Act. 1956,
have beent o entered.According to information and explanations given to us, the transactions
of purchase and sale of goods /services made in pursuance of such contracts or arrengements
have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to prevailing market prices at
the relevant time.

[Vi) The Company has not accepted deposits from other corporate which attracting the provisions of

[vii)

(viii)

section 584 and 5844 of the Companies Act, 1956, and the rules framed there under.

The systern of intermal audit of the Company needs to be strengthensd and commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

In respect of statutory dwes:

{a) According to the information, explanation and records verified by us the Company hes
gererally been regular in depositing Income Tex, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax,
Custom duty, Excise Duty, Cess, ather material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities. We are informed that the company intends to obtains exemption
from Provident Fund, Employees state insurance Act.

0] Theee were  no undisputed amounts payable in reapect of Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty, Custom Duty,Cese and other material statutory
dues in arrears as &t 31Manrch 2015 for a period of more than six months for the date
they become payable.

el

{d) Details of dues of [ncome Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custorn Duty, Excise
Duty and Cess which have not been deposited 85 on 31 March 2015 on account of
disputes are given below:

Mama of the Statue MNature of Forum where Period to Amount
Dues Dispute is which amount Involved
pending relates {Amount in z)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax | Tribunal A.Y.1999-2000 16,64,300
Income Tax | Tribunal A.Y.2000-2001 1,41,41,065
Income Tax | Assistant A.Y.1995-1996 3,786
Commissioner
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Financial Statements and Notes
Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report

Income Tax | Assistant A.Y.2003-2004 12,820
Commiszinner

Income Tax | Assistant A.Y.2004-2005 5,781

Commissinner

X

[%i)

[xii]

i)

[xiv]

[xv)

[xevi

|xvd]

Accumitlated Jossez at the end of fnancial vear ended on 319 March, 2015 isf.
1,22,03,067.15/- which does not exceed 50% of its net worth and &t has not incurred cash
losses in the financial vear ended on the date and in the immediately preceding financial Year

The Comparty is dealing in o trading in share, securities, Debenture or other investment. The
Company hss maintgined proper records: of the transactions snd contracts in respect of
dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments and timely entries
have been made therein, Further such securities have been held by the Company in its own
name ar are in the process of transfer in its own Company name.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
guarantee for loans taken by others from hanks or financial institutions.

.ﬂm:mrding o the information and EHP]EIJ'IEI.[W.I"IS gi'r‘&ﬂ o us and as per records made availabie
for our verificetion, the Company has not taken any term loan during the year.

In our eplnion and according to the mformation and explanation given to us and overall
examinaton of the balance sheet of the company, we report that funds rarsed on short term
hasiz have, prima facie, not been used during the vear for long term investment.

A% the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year fo parties
and companies covered in the Register mamtained under Section 3001 of the Act, the
provisions of clavwse 4{xviii] of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Comnpany has not raized any meney by public ssue during te vear,

To the best ol our knowledge and according 1o the inlormabon and explanations given Lo e,
no frevd by the Company and e meterial fraud was notoed or reported during year.

For Sheetal Samriya & Associates
Chartered Accountants,
{Firm Registration No.:011473C)

SD/-

Abhitesh Dubey

Partner

Membership No.: 147923
Vadodara, 30 May, 2015.
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Kavit Industries Limited m

EBALANCE SHEET A3 AT MARCH 31, 2013

Mleinteerahin Ma | £7923

Wadod

1,30 Woy, 2015,

|Amouniin T, |
L sl
Note No. AA2HE A0
EQUITY AMD LI&BILITIES
1) Bharehalders” Funids
&) Share mipial x A5 S, L)
| loeme roen el maplue L] TR, o 0k RS RS2, 306932 88 S13TE 077G
T} Share applcaiion money pending alolmant ~ 486 275, 0O0.00
15} Mea-cursen Failtics
ja] Leng-term torrewings 4 123, V52360 50 25 404,
|tk Defesred 1o labilres et .
1] Crber kang, ienn labikees | el Sk L AR, AR
e Dt Lomg, derm poovssnne [} AT T 25 - BlEE0DE1.E
4] Curviend Fabilies
|2} Trade payahles T 1,019,540, 74
[y Cecenr’ crarrend lsstalitien B 3T
fel Shori=term bpmesing o - _
1y Ceker Sharm 1E0m PEoyEsarn 0] TURITAOC STITIRASER 99,837.00 pRER T ]
TOTAL TI5, 784 872 58 6% 143,161 GE
IASSETS
5] Mot-carmenl Akdets
jaj Fivedd Asatn 11
M Tangitle assers a3CE] 03 38,380 84400
& Intanghle ases B )
{ui] Capzal work-in-progress 190,988.00 24173002 0 190,988.00 24.5E0812 [0
[y Pttt inveHm Erita 12 S5 E02TA01E 31282, 730015
kel Long-serm | e ncheampes ] 528, h45 4538 405580 8303
[l Sy non-oament ssets L% ELAA5 IS B G7EB4B2439 38 JOA35 41400 547, 50E, 58138
6] Currant Assety
lal lmrnsone: L& L0 00 3803, 170,00
|bh Trade recetvabiles La 16, (92 T6H 22 LT ATT
el Ciah and Bank Babinom 7 7H5.19 11248 A5 04
| Shar-term loans and sdvances L] 30040 00 150,000, 00
[E1 Dhver Cuenen Assets L] 1,287 594.29 13209759170 1 35h. 553,59 25861, 14742
TOTAL T15 784,372 58 61,343,161 GE
Sarmmury of aignilcent accounting pokicies 1 ) )
[The Motes sev un miegrsl part of firancinl sisiements
This i% the Bulance shwet referad 10 in our Feport even date Fuar il oan beha of the Beard of Dirsctars af
For Sheetal Samriya & Assocatoes it Inchustries Limbed
Charaned Azcountants
Firm Bregstmtiom Mo 1 14780
SD/- SD/- SD/-
Aisitesh Dober B Jurpest: Thadkdaor Blr. Hiren Fuz
Pominer Mannping ditector Dhrecior
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Kavit Industries Limited m

1] REVEMUE
(i) Reverie from operations
et of Exciee Duts)

{h] Other iccome

Tetal Revenue

2} EXPEMSE
la) Cost of Marerinl Conetmed
{b Purchases of stock-in-Lmade
]
Changes in lewesttories of finlebed poods, Wi
(d} Employee benefis mopense
| Firarce costs
T}y Deeprecsition and amorizaten cxpemse
|g Other expenses

Tebl Expenaes

4]  Profit bofore Excepficeal Hems and Tax

4) Ewcrpeional ltems (Metf

5)  Prafit hefom Tax

A} Tax Expenses:
Il Current Ta
b Mat Credtit
Ici Deferred Tax

7)  Profil Afer Tax

[8)  Wominal vl per share
Basic walue per share
Dxdiatid] Earming per stvang

[Bummmasy of significant ocooanting policies
The Notes are an integrl part of Snancial siotements

Note No.

n

P
1

4
-]
]
1]
7

[STATEMENT OF PROFIT AMD LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015,

|Amountin E.)
Year anded ‘Faar ended
MBS JET2ere
i, 1 55.915.82 7433601 51
,196.915. 74138910
421755701 [ [k kT
10,415,502.81 13,636 85545
1,643,311.51 1.939.536.58
BLLATEM 5.DR77RT.AT
1,392 04200 11,703, 450 07
AROEI4.00 [ el
157 47050 73,4830
1,905.910.00 2,052,537.00
1,504 145001 AATAATT.E8 3,085, 580.66 11,137 331.11
BAT4ATT.8 13,137, 281.11
15482854 758,774.34
44,822,00 -
1.407,400. 34 758,774.34
476,548.00 58,450.00
1,020,855.34 T, 524,34
0.16 0.11
0.16 0.11

Far Sheetal Sameiya & Associates
Chrarternd Accowtants
Firm Regsiratag o 01 14750

§D/-

Abhitesh Dubey
Fastner

Membenihip Mo, 147923
Vndndam, 30 May, 2015,

This ix tye Profit and Loss Statemesd refered to in our report even date

Forand on behalf of the Baard of Directars ol

Eavil Industries Limited

SD/-

Mr Javesi Thakkar

Managing direcsor

SD/-

Mr, Hiren Rac
[Hrector




Eavil Industries Limited
{Farmerly Known as Atreya Petroechem Limtéd]

Kavit Industries Limited m

CASH FLOA STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR EMDED MARCH 31, 2015

. Cash Flow from Opensting fctlvities
Frafit beforas Tax
Aud s s fon
Dwgnerinbion nnd Amnciisntion Expense
CHer noa-operating lncomes [Inel Written - off
Interoat expomae
Frefiminany Expenses W odl
brsrene: Toce Provisian
Thwidendd Innmme

Dporating Profi bofore Working Capstal ohangos

Adjustments Tor
Inwventorien
Trode recelvables and Other Recsjvable
Tracdn popeakhile amd Oethier Paynbies
Inorease {Diecreass] in shorl tenm borroing
Inerennef [Decrewee] s poevisisng
Cash Gonarated from Opecathaon
Dhiroet Tax Paid

Mot Cosh infeow fromd (outfow]) from Dperating activitios
F. Cash Flow from Inveating Acilvidlea

Purchinse o Mxed nssess
Purchuae of Inrcsimenis
Inierest received
Dividend rocohed

Mt Eank infiow fromi (outliaw) fram irasking actiiss
C. Cash Flow from Finanoing Sotivitios

Prooeeds § Repoyment from Long Teom BormowingiHer)
Proceeda fronm Long Term Borrowing

Prooceds f Repayment from Loons and Advinces [Het)
Intereat pusd

Prooeeds of Shore Appllostion money fShare Capital

Mad Cank inflows froemi |

Trom
Nt ncrease | {docreaso) incash and cash equivalonts

Dponing Cosh and Cash Equivstoms
AT

Euzls bulunces

(Closing Coah and Cash Equlvalonis
Canmh in hamd
Fnmnk halanres

ckdiional Infarmathon
Ruiless, BE0G

) Figrres in beockei represent auifiess.
A} Previcus year fgures hinve been recast/ restobs] whers necessury

iAmount in )
Yaar pnded ¥anr pnded
TR EE- FES RER-AEEY
1,497,403 758,774
15905 Guiy 2,052,527
(3,970 9B 15,530, 780)
CERIEE .80
124,087 124,087
476,548 -
(767,188) (2,692,632|
I, 5Ua 0806 12.573.120]
H214 432 110, BEA 695
268,149 B 3E5.772)
0] 889 -
03530 -
OB TS [EENER
- 1183210
4 873,204 (27,7223
2413000 12,371,100
[ ESRNTlE [} i ]
3,9700EY AL TED
2248 ann (24,140,320)

05,530,014

4415, 156

(12652, 143 E I =Rl
132,796, 884] 423671 BT
i, 18] 12, Sl
14,725,000 48527 5,000

(36,227, 550 51378621
0, Fheh 343 [EEEWEN]

ERENTN]

14 548, 5T LA, 500
) gﬁ:g:[; AA4.010
6,236,575 :

1} Thet Aboyn Cesh Flow Siimtement han Been propoered. under the ‘Indiroct Bethaod'me sct out i the
Acoopunring Stenderd on Cash Flow Biatcment (45-35 lssued by the Dompanles Scosaniing Stondard

[This s Cash Flow Srademeni referred oo our report of even date

For Shepts Samiriya & Associates
Chartered Accownbims

For pnd an Behall of the Bosrd of Direotors of
Favil Industries Limited

SD/-
Abhiteah Dby $D/- SDI-
Fartner
. M Joyesh Thalhar M. Hiren R
Memberahip Mo, OTES Mg Hracior [

R

L A0 May, 3015

6D
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Financial Statements and Notes

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

1.

General Information

Kavit Industries Limited (Fommery known as Atreya Petrochem Limited)  i= Public Limited
Company incorporated in India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, The
Company’s strength lics in the various businesg Scgments like manufacturing of Oil
Producta, Manufacturing & Trading of Garments of men and woman wears with Brand
Name "RAW ", Company has also expanded another Line of Business in Power Sector with
Name " KAVIT GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED" [ 100% SFY OF KIL). The same has
been set up as a Solar Energy Power Project in Karmataka which is awarded by KARMNATARA
RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENT LIMITEDR [Govt of Karnataka Undertaking.

Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

(a) Accounting Convention

The Accounts of the Company are prepared under the Historical Cost Convention on
the Accrual Basis of Accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India ["GAAFT) and in compliance with the mandatory Accounting
Standarda notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards] Rules, M, as
amended, and with the relevant provizions of the Companies Act, 1956, The Financial

Statements are presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to the pearest rupees,

The preparation of financial atatements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
Iabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and
the results of operationa during the reporting periods. Examples of such estimate
include future obligations under employee benefit plans, income taxes, usefal lives of
fixed assets and intangible assets, impairment of assets, provigion for doubtful debts
etc. Management helieves that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could wary from these
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management becomes
aware of the changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Any revigion to
acoounting estimates is recognized in the period in which such results are known/
materialized. Effect of material changes is disclosed in the notes to the financial

SLATAMENTS,

The Company has also reclassified the previous yvear figures in accordance with the

requirements applicable in the current vear,

B3 D
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current ar non-current as per the
Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria sef out in the revised Schedule VI
to the Companies Act, 1956, Based an the nature of products and the time between the
acquisittons of assets for procegsing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 monthe for the purpose of

current-mon-current classification of aseets and liabilities:

(b) Tangible Assets, Depreciation
i. Tangible assets are stated at Coat less Accumulated Depreciation, Impairment
loss, if any, ascertained as per the Accounting Standard 28 (Impairment of
Assets); Cost compriges the Purchase Price and any such cogts attributable for
the purposeé of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended uae,

ii. Tangible Assers under constructon, Advances pawd towards acquisitbon of
Tangible Assets and Cost of Assets not ready for use as at the vear end, are
dizsclosed as Capital Work-In Progress,

iii. In respect of Tangible Assets depreciation is provided on Straight line bagsis
applying the rates specified in schedule XIV of Companies Act 1956 except
Computer.

iv. Tangible Aszets helow Rs 10000 are fully depreciated in the wvear of

acfuisition.

(¢} Investment
Investments of long term-nature are stated at cost, less adjustment for any
dimimation, nther than temparary, in the value thereof, Carrent Investments are sfatec

at lower of cost or markot vaiue,

(d) Inventory

Finished and Semi-Finished Products produced and purchased by the company are
carried at Cost and net realizable value, whichever is lower,

Waork in Progress is carried at Inwer of cost and net realisable value,

Eaw Material 1s carried at lower of cost and net realisable value,

Stores and Spares parts are carried at cost. Necessary provision is made and expenaed
in case of identified obsolete and non moving items.

Cost of Inventory s generally ascertained on the "Weighted average’ basis. Work in
progress, Finished and semi finished products are valued at on fall absorption cost

basis.
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Cost Comprizes expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing

such inventorica to ita location and includes, where applicable, appropriate overheads

hased on normal level of activity. Packing Material is considered as finished goods.

Consumable stores are written off in the yvear of Purchase,

(e} Employee Benefits

Provision for Gratuity, Leave Encashment and bonus has not been made as none of
the emplovee have completed the minimum qualified period of services.

Impairment of Assets

Af each balance sheet date, the management reviews the carrving amounts of each

cash generating unit to determing whether there is any indication that those assets

were impaired, IT any such indication exits, the recoverable amount of the assets is

estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, Recoverable amount
is higher of an asset™s net selling price and value in use. [n assessing vahe in use,

the estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the assets and

from its disposal are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate

that reflects the current market assessments of time value of money and the risks

specific 1o rthe assets. Cash flows used o derermine value in use are derived from

annual budgets and strategic plans of the cash generating units,

(g) Revenue Recognition

Sale are recognized on when substantial risks and rewards of ownership in the
goods are rransferred to the buyer i.e. delivery as per terms of sale.

() Other Income

U

()

Interest Income and incnme from Investments are aceointed on aceral basis.
Dividend [ncome is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.
Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in Forelgn Currency and Non-Monetary Assefs are accounted for at
the Exchange Rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. All monetary items
denaminated in Foreign Currency are converted at the Year-End Exchange Hate,
The Exchange [hfferences arnsing on such conversion and on settlement of the
transactions are recognized as income oF as eXpenses in the vear in which they
arise.

Taxes on Income

Current Income Tax is measuared at the amount expected 0 be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred Tax is recognized for all the timing differences; subject to the consideration
of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets,
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized and carried forward onfy to the extent that there
15 ressonable certainty that sufficient tuture taxable income will be available against
which such deterred tax assets can be realied,

(k) Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash & Cash Equivalent for the purpose of cash Dow statement comprises of cash
at bank and in hand and short term investments/ bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less,

() Provisions
A Provision is recognized when cotipany has a present oblipation as a resall of past
evenls, il % probable that an outlow of resources embodying economic berefits will
be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the chhgation, Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are
determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to

reflect the currenl best estimates,

(m} Trade Receivables:

In respect of Hecewable tor Sundry Debtors (Incl. Becewvable on Sale of Investments|
of B5. 166,92 Lacs and Other Trade receivable, the amount of Bad & Doubtful Debts
are is not ascertainable on account of non- receipt of confirmation from the party.

{n) In respect of loan and advances, the amount of bad and doubtful debts is not
asceriainable on account of non- receipt of confirmation from the party.

o] In the opinion of the Directors, Current Assets, Loans & Advances have values at
which they are stated in the Balance Sheet, if realized in the ordinary course of
busimess, The provision lor depreciation and all known labihtes is adeguate,

[p) Sundry Creditors, Unsecured loans, other liabilities, loans and advances, sundry
debtors, and other current assets are subject to confirmation.

{q) Micro Small & Medium Enterprise: The Company is in the process of compiling the
relevant inlormabion. Dues o Micro and small enterprises have been determined o
the extent such parties have been identihed on the basis of mformation collected by

the management. This has been relied upon by us.
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

(h  Claims, Demands and Contingencies ;

Laetanls of disputed and; or contingent Liabilities are as foflows:

As on As on
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Income Tax Demanded-Disputed 1,58,27,752 1,58,27,752

(8} In the opinion of the Management, the Provident Fund and ESl oact are not

applicable, hence no provision bave been made for the same,

() Earning & Expendiiure in Foreign Curreney - Nl {PUY. = Dil]

{u) Directors Eemuneration: Nil [P.Y, — Nil|

(v} Auditors Femuncration : 67416/~ (P.Y.60000|

(w) Related party disclosures @

a. List of related parties with whom transaction have taken place.

Sr. Name of the Related Party Relationship
No.

1. Pacific Securities Ltd. Companies / Firms in which
2. Natural Expo Agro Ltd. Directors [ Relative  of
3. Prabhav Industries Ltd. Dirertor are inferested

4. Galav Finance & Investment Pvt. Ltd.

5. Kavit Investment Pvt. Ltd.

6. Empire Housing Finance Ltd.

7. Pacific Finstock Ltd.

8. Jayesh Thakkar (Incl. Prop. Pavitra Director of the Company

Corporation|

/6_7\
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Kavit Indusiries Limied (Fromesly Known as Atreya Petrochem Limited|

2 SHARE CAPITAL :
AsAt31
AUTHORISED March,2015 As At 31 March,2014
5,060,000 Equity Sheres of T, 10/ - each .5, 000,000.00 5,006,000, 00
Total 5,000,000.00 35,000,000.00
|SBUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAIDP
4,64, 50,000 Equity Shares of 7. 10/- each 164, 500,000.00 G 0000, 00
Total 434,500,000.00 64,500 000.040

Termesimights attached to equity shares:

21 e compaziy hag onfy ome class of equity shares having 8 par vafue of 3114~ per share: Kach Hofder ol equity sheres 15
entitled fosobe per share. The company declares and of pays dividends in Indsn rupess, The dividend proposed, if any, by the
Board Directoes (3 Meeting. During the vear ended 312t March sobject to the approval of the sharcholders i the engwing Annual
Genernl 2014, was T, Nil [Previeus Year 7, 8iithe amoumt of per share dividend recognized as distribations 1o equity sharehalders

2.2 The Company has sswed 4,00,00,000 warrant fully convertible into squity shares of 7,13 each meluding premium of 7.5
during ihe current yesr but has not increased ils authorised share capitad. Which is not lawfull

2.4 Details of Share holdees holding more than 5% of Sharnes are as under--

A at 31 Manch 2015 As at 31 March,2014
% of

Name Category | Shareholding Mo of Shares iy of Shareholding

Raghuvir [nternational Pet. Lid. Preference Shane 19,38 % BRI 0.00%
Shree Saihaha Fxim P Lid. Preference Shane 15.07% T OO0 0.00%
BIL Vercade Trading Pyt Ld. Preference Shane B.63% 400663 .00
Krystalklear Progerties Per, Ltd Praference Share E.40% 000000 0.00%
Apratesm Trading Pei. Lid, Preference Share T.05% SBCRICKH) .00
Ethan Consdrisctions Pet. Lad. Proference Shane T4 300000, 0.00%
Saint Infrastructure Pyt Lid. Preference Shire .85, 3000 0.0
Gill Enzertainment Put. Led, Prefemnesy Share .67, A LORICN 0.00%
Indivar Traders Por. Lid Preference Share 6.24% KGO0 0.00%

As per records of the company, @eluding its Tegeter of sharehoiders members and other declarations recered Trom shareholders
regerding beneficial interest, the above sharehnlding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares,

2.5 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :-

As on 31-03-2015 As on 31-03-2014
Number of
Parficulars Shares Rs.in Lakhs | Number of Shares Rs. in Lakhs
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 6,450,000.00 64,500,000.00 6,450,000.00 64,500,000.00
Add : Fresh issue during the year 40,000,000.00 | 400,000,000.00 — —
Outstanding at the end of the year 46,450,000.00|  464,500,000.00 6,450,000.00 64,500,000.00
/6_8\
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JRESERVES AND SURPLUS.: Al 31 March 2044

) Securities Pramium Reserve
Opeaing st begini
Saldkition during the year
UtiBised during the year
Clesing at end

bj) General Resarva
Opening ot brginning
fueldbitiem during the year
Utilized during the year
Cloging at and

&) Security Premium
Opening &1 begnning
Aelditiem during the year
Utilized during the year

Closing at and

d) Surplusi Deficit)
Dpening at beginning
dditian durlig the vear

Clesing at ard
Girand Totsl {avbe)

13,902 3410
700,393

[13.22,922.48)

113,223, 922.45)

4 LONG-TERM BORRCWIMGS : At 31 March 2044

Secured Term Loans
il From Banks
il From Financial Instiuations
il] Froe BEFC
Sub-Tatal (3]
Unsecured Term Laans
i) Loans and Acvances from related parties
From Mirscznrs
From Corparates
i Other Loans and Advanoes
From Comarabes
Others

S00,000.00
2043202539

283240700
13000000

Sub-Total (b)
Tedal fath)
4.1 All the Ursecwred loans are without any repayment achedule it are payatle on demand.

15,404, 482.24
25,404, 462,74
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At 31 March,2014

5 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES :

Others 38,256,348.94

38,256,348.94

Total
2.1 Others includes suminy crediions cutstanding far more than 12 months,

s At 31 March,2014

6 OTHER LONG TERM PROVISIONS :

Pranvision for Employes Benefits
Prewealon for Gratuity
Leave Encashment
Todal

b1 e Maniggment 16 of e Upitrn Ul nore o the emplogses 1alls wilh i the provsion of Grsbuisy FESE ool alhers; s
o pronioen has beon dons,

7 TRADE PAYABLES & AL 3T March, 2014
Trade Payables L631,390e7
Totsl 1,651,301 &7

7.1 Trade pavabdes are for ppods purchased ond services faken during the normal coorse of business,

7.2 The Company has nol recenved information from vendors regarding Cheir status under the Mo, Smadl & Mediuem
Enterprises Development Aci, 2006 and hence disclosure relating to amount unpaid at the year end together with inberent
paid/ puyoble under the Act have ot been goren.

B OTHER CURRENT LIABEITIES ! s At 31 March,2014

Cumrant Mahaities of Lang-Tarm Loans
Secured Tem Loans

Fiam Bakiks

From Financial Enatitutions

From NBFC

Total {a}

Urrsbcured Term Loans

|| Lonms and Adwancss from related pariies
From Derectirs

Fram Lnrponaies

i} Cher Loans and Advances

Fiam Cirpoiates

Total (b)

Oifvers
Stanarory Thies
Others
Tetal {e}
[nzerest Accrued but not Tue on Borrowings
Grand Total (7t b+c)

386,043.61

386,043.61

386,043.61

8.1 Statutory dues inclides VAT, Excise Duty, TN, service tox & other shviutory paysbles
A2 Oher Current labdlities includes rend payabie | irrerest payable and seaff dues

/7?
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9 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Secured
Warking copital facilities from Bankos
Suti-Tatal (2]
Unsecured
Deposits From Pablic
Loans From related parties
Leans Fram others
Sub-Total ib}

Total (a+h)

10 SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS :
Provigion for Employes Benefits
Provision for Gratuity
Leave Eneaahinent
Others
Tokal {a}

Pronviion for Expenses
Frension for [ncome Tax

Total (b)

Total (a+h)

Kavit Industries Limited m

K B H
March,2015 fs AL 31 March.2094
Bis BT ST
Mareh 2015 As AL T Mareh, 2014
= 20.000.00
20,000.00
G0, 674,00 —
D2, B0 TEIT.O0
703,373.00 78,837.00
03,3730 99,837.00

k1 Prowisicn for smplkvee Benelics inchudes provisson of Gratudty, Bonus & leave encashment payablks wishin 12 monsh

10.2 Cithers inchuces salery and ather expense pavable to staff

12 NOM-CLIRRENT INVESTMENTS

A Trade Insestments |Unquoded At Cost)
Other Investisnt

Inwestmient in shares

Sub-Total [a)
B Ciher Investments (Unguobed at Market Valua|

SubeTodal [B]

Tailal [2+b}
Aggregate smount of guoted Invesiments
Market Value of guoted Investments
Aggregate book vahie of un-quoted Investments

LY TE]]
Mareh, 2015 Ag AL 17 Mareh, 2094
35,302, 730,12 31,362, 730.15
15,502,730.15 21,382,730.15
35,602,730.15 ,162,730.15
J5,502,730.15 362,705
|35,500.730,15 ,362,730,15

14,1 Imvestment in shares moludes mvestments m vamous corpoTies & prvaie lumited companies. [mestment are stated ot oose,

71>
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13 LONG -TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES |
[Unsecured and Conssdened Good)

|| Loans end Advances from reloted porties

From Corporates

Dahers

Suh-Talal (3]
lij Deher Loans and Advances
Fram Corporates

THhers
Subr-Talal (b]

Todal {a+k)

13,1 Other includes includes balares with stpbuicer Aothority | elecincity depeesiis &

14 OTHER MON-CURRENT ASEETS
{Unsacuned gnd Considared Good)
Trade Receivahles

Eratutory Dues

Tetal

14, 1 Lithers indiuckz Bsdelicanous Experchbore & Foe- eperahye bxpenss ol

15 INVENTORIES ;
cariflind by management)
Raw Material
Finlshed Goeds
Wirde in Progresa

Total

1E TRADE RECERVABLES :

Unaccured arid Considened Caood|

Ostatarling for o periced eeending sis months Gom the die date of paymimd
Comsldered food

Fimuhtinl

Cithera
Considered pood

Frenssiom & doubnfnd teele reconaiibs
Tedal
17 CAEH & BANK BALAMCE

Cash & Cash Eguivakents
Cash on Hard

Balarces with Bank

Ciry Cusrent ACCiUps:
IWith Scheduled Bank|

Total

Kavit Industries Limited !il

s AL March, 2014

133,359,028

A2, T05,555,85
2,848,024 50

435 255,470.95

321,648 453 435 688,838.03
leyee rent depeeits & others,

s AL 31 March 2014

17,526,405 50
1,211,347
1,817, 7 0
I0,355,414.08

& AL March, 2014

1,049, G700
2002, 142,00
A471.308,00

s At 31 March,2014

20,907,200.77

20,907,200.77

20,907,200.77

s At 31 March,2014

334,009.67

(459,566.71)




Kavit Industries Limited m

Financial Statements & Notes
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As At 31

1R EHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES : M 2N < /1t 31 March.2014

A 1o suppliees o goocds Bosesviees — 110,000.00
Others 105,423,000.00 —
ars
Tadal 105,423,000.00 110,000.00
18,1 Others Inehedes loans 1o Corporane & others
A aH |
19 OTHER CURRENT ARSETS mi-m #As Al 31 March, 2014
Staturory Dues 18.929.00 L&0,000.00
(ithere 1,268 905 55 1,18, S5 60 |
e
Total 1.307,030,83 1006 86568 |
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Kavit Industries Limied (Fromerly Known as Atreya Petrochem Limited]

20 REVENUE FROW OFERATIOING

Particulars
Sale of Proucts 0 o]
L Excine Doy

Tatal

Other Qperating, ReviEnucs

Total

21 OTHER INCOME

Particullars

EnteTest [Roome

Reertl Incaxivss

Wineiiomin v TpLoo

Crbier pon-opErating noome

(et al expeidess divectly artributable 19 such incame el Wiisten off]

Total

ZZ COST OF MATERIAL CONEUMED

Particullars

g Srock of BEaw Materials
thuaea of Raw Materials
Less: Closing S4ock of Row Matorials

Total

3% PURCHASE OF STOCHK-IN-TRADE

Particullars

Trading Furchase

Total

PelichEs purchiass ol equaly abases & L

231 Trading Pu

24 CHAMGES IN INVENTORY OF FINFEBHED GOODE, WORK-SN-FROGRESS

Particullars

Suily Total {a)

Cloning live
Finixl Ciasda
Work in Progriess

Sulbs Total [b]

Total (a+b)

Kavit Industries Limited m

Year Ended
March 31, 2015

Yar Endded
March 31, F014

8,442,860.76
1,009,168.95

7,433,691.81

3,976,088.49

6,198,915.82 TAIIEFTHT |
Year Ended Yar Endded
March 31, 2015 March 31, 3014
194,397.54 ERZ.oY
- QU . D
46,600.98 A1 0000

5,630, TTR.95

March 31, 2015

1,099,670.00
1,442,267.51
898,626.00

4,217,987.01 B AL O Ry
Year Ended Year Ended

1,643,311.51 s W o

March 31, 2014

2 300
4, 850FLI06.54
1, 00 570, 0

Year Ended
March 31, 2015

Waar Endad
March 31, 2014

ikl MO0 Drwnlini,

611,475.00 5,087 78757
5 0BT, TET 57
Year Ended Year Endded
March 31, 2015 March 31, 3014
2,022,142.00 EON OO, DR
481,308.00 -
2,503,450.00 | BT
630,100.00 20114200
481,308.00 481 A08.00
I 1,111,408.00 | 50335007
1,392,042.00 T, 7O 5001
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25 EMPLOYEE BEMEFIT EXPEMEES
Particulars

Baluries and incentives
Sevurily Exproaes
Sipdl wellnre expenses

Total

6 FINAMNCE COST
Particulars

TRETEst BRpEnse
Hank Chasies

Total

ZT OTHER EXFEMEES

Particulars

Porer e Fuel Charges

Callbration & Making Charges
Lasbaiiar g.wégu Charges Expeeres
Making Charges

Frreight & Carting Charges

Oitheer Direct Choreges

Factary Expense

Suls Toiad {a)

Advertisemont Expenacs

Audit Feen

Bauilding Maintenance Chirges
Consultancy Charpes

Lacemce Fees

Listing Fees

Ebdricity Expemses
Miscellancous Exprnses

Legal & Profesabonal Fees
Office & Miscellineous Expendes
Lol Survey Fees

Past nnd Courier Expenses
Printing & Statkonery Expenses
Renr, Rates S Tases
Reg=iration & Filling Fees
Tekrphone Expenses

Web Site Expetises

Trenvelling Exponess

Repoirs & Malntninooce

Siils Tl (b]
DTHER EXPENSES.

Preliminsry & Shares Insued Exponses 8-off
Saoles and Promotion Expenses

Suils Totad {c)

Todal {astec|

War Endisd
Marah 31, 3014

533, 300000
£5,692.00

Year Ended
March 31, 3014

286000
A, A

Wear Endesd
Maroh 31, 2014

AT 28

71,333.00
21T A0
Tidmal.aa
MGG, O

25000.00
67 41600
1500, 0

TAA87.00
22872000
SA3L.TE

1997308
2022708

SAL600. 08
178 450,08
2,000,080
A50ET.00
SA1E.D0

13, B9800
2 ALT 0

124.0a7.00
B ASD 07
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28- EARMINGS PER EQLNTY SHARES

ParFticidars

Basic Earmings par Shara

Prosit f {Losss) atiribstabile tp Bgquity shareholders
Weighted nverape number af equity shares

Basic Eamings Per Shane

Face walue par Shara

Dilutive Earnings par Shara
Proefin alter adjusting inlerest en pErtentiad equity shares
Weighted pverspe number of equety share after conssdering petential ecuity ¢

Dliitiva Eamnings par Shara

Kavit Industries Limited m

Yoar Enclod Yizar Erdesd
March 31, 2M15 March 31, 2014
1,020,855 TL324.34
6,4 50 008 A, 450, 008
0.16 011
10 10
1,020,855 700,324
6,4 50, 008 A, 450, 008
0.16 011
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Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Kavit Industries Limited
(Formedy known as Alreya Pelrochem Limited]

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial Statement of Kavit Industries Limited
(Formerly known as  Atreya Petrochem Lid)  (Hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”)
which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015, and the statement of Profit & Loss and
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as *the consolidated financial statements"),

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Stalements

The Holding Company's management is responsibfe for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flow of the Holding company in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-
section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act’} and in accordance with the
secounting  principles  generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of infernal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free From material
misstatement, whether due to fraid or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit, We conducted our gudit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 1ssued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
eomsolidated financial statements are fres from material misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those rigk asseszments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Holding Company's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
ard the reasonableness of the aceounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
everall presentation of the consolidated financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our awdd opinon.

72 Y
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Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

Independent Auditor's Report

Opinion
In our apinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally acoepted
i India!

s}

b)

in the case of the consolidated Balance Shect, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2015 subject to below qualification;

Dunng the current year company has issued 4,00,00, 000 preferance shares of Rs15 each af &
pramim of FsS fuly comeerfibie imlo equely shares, buf has mod incregsed f= Authorzed Capifal

by 40, 000,00, 000,

in the case of the conaolidated Profit and Loss Acoount, of the profit for the year ended on that
date ; and
in the case of the consolidated Cash Flow Staterment, the cash flows for the year ended on
thar date.

Report on other legal and Regulatory Requirament

1.

As required by the Companies [Auditor's Report] Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (44] of section 237 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure @ statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order,

As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

gl We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our awdit.

b} In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
s0 far a5 appears from our examination of those books.

¢ The Batance Sheet, and Statement of Profit and Loss, dealt with by this Beport are in
agreement with the books of account,

dy In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, and Statement of Profit and Loss, comply with the
Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act,
1956,

@] Omn the basis of written representations received fram the directors as on March 31, 2015,
and taken on record by the Board of Divectors, none of the directors s disgualified as on
March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g of sub-section (1)
of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956,

For Sheetal Samriya & Associates
Chartered Accountants,
{Firm Registration No.: 0114T8C)

SD/-

Abhitesh Dubey

Pariner

(Membership No.: 147923)
Vadodara, 30 May, 2015
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Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

1)

(i)

(ii)

iii]

Having regard to the nature of the Company's business/ activities / results fduring the year,
clatge {wii), (i), (i) (b}, xix) of paragraph 4 of the Order are oot applicable to the Campany.

In Respect of s Fied Assaets:

[} As informed to us, the Company is-in the process of compiling records te showing full
particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets,

[b) As explained to us, fived assets, according to the practice of the Company are physically
verified by the management at reasonable intervals, in a phased verification-programme,
which, in our opinion, is reasonahle, lsoking to the size of the Company and the nature of
its busimess. As informed t0 us, no materiad discrepancies  have been noticed on
verification;

[c] The Fixed Assete disposed off during the year, in our opinion, do not constitute a
suhstantial part of the fixed assets of the company and such disposal has , in our opinion,
rat affected the gedng concern status of the company.

In Respect of its Inveniory:

(&) As informed 10 us, the [nventory of Fimished and semi-finished goods and raw materials at
waorks were physical verified by the management ai reasonable intervals during the year, In
our opinion, having regard to the nature and location of stock, the frequency of verification
is reasonable.

(B In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management were
reasonabie wd adequate in relation 1o the size of the company and nature of its business.

) In our opindon and according 6 the information and explanations gven to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of inventory, and no material discrepancy were
noticed on physical verification.

The Company has granted loans to 2company and listed in the register maintained under
Sectlon 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, The year balance of leans granted to these was
T115.77 Lacs. (P.Y, T.115.77 Lacs.]

In our opinion and according be the information and expianations given to us, the erms and
condition of loan given to the. parties covered wnder in the register maintained under section
301of the Companies Act, 1956 are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no repayment schedule has been
specified amd accordingly the question of regularity in payment of principal amount and
interest wherever applicable does not arise. However the said loan is repayable on demarnd.

The Company has taken unsecured loans from 4 companies listed in the Register maintained
under Section 301 of the Companles Act, 1956, The year balance of loans taken from these
was T 100,20 Lacs. (P.Y, T 202,53 Lacs)

In respect of above Loans taken, no repayment schedule has been apecified with regard to the
Interest / Repayment or any other terms and conditions,

I
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[ Inoour epmion, and accerding to the information and explanations given o us, there 15 an
adequate nternal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the natiice
of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed sssets and for the sale of goods and
services, Further, on the besis of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across,
mor have been informed of, any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid
internal control system.,

[vj According to the information and explanations given to us, the details of transaction that
needed to be entered in the reglster in pursuance of section 301 of the Company Act. 1956,
have been g0 entered According to information and explanations given to us, the transactions
of purchase and sale of goods (semvices made in pursuance of such contracts or arrangements
have been made al prces which are reasonable having tegand to prevailing market prices at
the eelevant Hme.

Vi) The Company has not accepted deposits from other corporate which attracting the provisions of
section 584 and 58A4 of the Companies Act, 1956, and the rules framed there under.

[vii) The systern of intermal audit of the Company needs to be strengthened and commensurate
with the aize and nature of ite bueiness.

(viii) I respect of statutory dues:

{a) According to the inlormaton, explanaton and records veried Dy us the Company nes
generally been regular in depositing Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax,
Custom duty, Excise Duty, Cess, other material statutory dues appleable to it with the
appropriate authorities, We are informed that the company intends (o ebtains exemption
from Provident Fund, Employess state insurance Act,

{b] There were no undispated amounts payable in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax
Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty, Custom Duty,Cess and other material statutory
ducs in arvears ag &t 31March 2015 for a period of more than six months for the date
they become payable.

(c] Detaila of dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Weatth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise
Duty and Cess which have noi been deposized as on 31 March,2015 on account of
disputes are given below:

Mame of the Statua Nature of Forum where Period to Amount
Dues Dispute is which amount Invaolved
pending relates {Amount in 3)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax | Tribunal AY.1999-2000 16,64,300
Income Tax | Tribunal A.Y.2000-2001 1,41,41,065
Income Tax | Assistant A.Y.1995-1996 3,786
Commissioner
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Income Tax | Assistant A.Y.2003-2004 12,820
Commissioner

Income Tax | Assistant A.Y.2004-2005 5,781
Commissioner

by

[xi)

[

[ii)

R

[xw)

faevi]

[wii]

Accumulated losses at the end of finAncial year enmded om 319 March, 2015 is T,
121,56,008,15/ - which does not exceed 50% of its net worth and it has not incurred cash
leazes in the financial yvear ended on the date and in the immediately preceding financial Year.

The Company 15 dealing in or trading in share, securities, Debenture or other investment. The
Company has maintained proper records of the transactions and contracts in respect of
dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments and timely entries
have been made therein. Further such securities have besn held by the Company in its own
name of are in the process of transfer in its own Company name.

According to the information amnd explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or Ainancial inatitutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per records made available
for our verifcaton, the Company has not taken any term loan during the vear,

Ii our opinion and acconding to the ntormation and explanation given to us and overall
examination of the balance sheet of the company, we report that funds raised on short term
basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long term investment,

As the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year to parties
and companies covered in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Act, the
provisions of clause 4{xviii] of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moeney by public isswe during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 1o us,
nio fraud by the Company and no material fraud was noticed or reported during vear,

For Sheetal Samriya & Associates
Chartered Accountants,
(Firm Registration No.:011473C)

SD/-

Abhitesh Dubey

Partner

Membership No.: 147923
Vadodara, 30 May, 2015.
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Kavit Industries Limibed
(Formerly Known as Atreya Petrochem Limited|

EBALANCE SHEET A3 AT MARCH 31, 2013

|Amzeniin T,
A5 ok st
Note No.
ote No AFEME A0
EQUITY ANMD LI&BILITIES
1) Bharehalders” Funids
&) Sharr mpial x 454 R, DXL
i ez rven mrd mapiue 3 BT 540,001 .88 B57,443,931 35 513TRO7T.5
¥} Share applcaiion money pending alolmeant 5 (80, (0.0 435 75800 .01
3] Meoa-carsent Fasiltics
|| Len g-term borroewings L} 13, V523060 50 25 404, 453,74
|tk Defesred 1o labilres (et . -
] Crber kang, ienn labikes | = Bl Sk L AR, A0
1 Ot lrmg ferm provesnns f - ALATIIE S - BEE0ET.2
4] Curviend abilies
|8} Trade payabiles T I R T L.G51.371.47
[y Cwenr’ crarrenl lsstalitien B 35,34 11 ARG A
lel Short-term bamreaing 1] . -
e aheer Sham 160m provisionm 1] Ta4.389.00 HMIMT.Ea 99,837.00 AT I
TOTAL T40,584.123 58 6% 143,161 GE
IASSETS
5] Moat-carmenl Akdets
|l Fierd Aesete 11
Taingitle: assets 13 92],034.00 28,380 51400
ngihike asseis - -
{ai] Capzal work-in-progress 190,988.00 24173902 [0 190,988.00 24.5E0.812 [0
[y Broa-curest i eI 12 F5E0RTA0IE 31362 73015
kel Long-serm | e nsvamen ] 528, h45 4538 05580 8303
[l s non-oament seeets L% E1A451.570 58 57853 16338 A5 414.00 547,506, 582.34
6] Currant Assety
ja] lmvensorses. 15 EGS 3,803, 170,00
|t Trade receivabiles 1/] 1o, (HEE TGH. LT TT
el Ciah and Bank Babinom 7 [ 128, 85704
¥ Sharm-term loans and sdvances ] 188, 325 DO 150,000 00
|1 Cebeer Curnen Ass=is L] &, AB00GH. 21 13722003770 | 3560, 55169 25,861,047 42
TOTAL T40,504.123 58 61,343,161 GE
Samenry of signifeit accounting pokisies 1 ) )
The Mobes see un iicgrsd part of financinl sistements
This ix the: Bakince séwecl refered 10 in oo repat even dale Fier anil &1 behisdd of the Beard of DNrectan af
For Shestal Sameiya & Associales Waneit Inchusfrizs LimBed
Charaned Azcountants
Firm Brgstration Mo 1 1478
SD/- SD/- SD/-
Alisitesh Dubey B Jurpesd: Thadkdaos Blr. Hiren Fuz
Paminer Mannping director Dhrecior
Mlenberahin Ma 1 7923

Wadodara, 30 ay, 2015
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[STATEMENT OF PROFIT AKD LSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015,

[Amountin B |
Note No Year ended faar ended
) AVHENS Elkylr. ot
1) REVEMLIE
(] Revere from operations i i, 105 915.82 7433601 81
et of Excise Dundg 6196915k T413401.80
|b] Qther income 21 4,31%.12901 46T a5 At
Total Revenue 18,513, 044.E1 11,636 E55.45
2} EXPENSE
fah Coest of Marerial Conammed 1 1,643,311.51 1.539.336.58
[k} Puschases of sinck-in-irade 11 BLLATI0N 5,087 7ET.5T
['e] Charges in iwentories of finished goods, WIF 14 1,302, 04200 11,703, 450,00
i) Emploves benefils expense 5 ARLE14.00 G LX)
Ie) Fimamee costs i3 17305080 T348.50
i Depreciation anid amariizatie expersi I 1,045,910.00 2,053,527.00
{g) Other experses 27 261170000 3.307.804.83 1.085.580.66 13,137 281.11
Tobal Experses §,307.804.83 11,137 331.11
3] Profit bofore Excepfional Hems and Tax 1.618,240.34 758,774.34
4)  Esceptional ltems (Netf 44,822.00 -
5)  Profit hedom Tax 1,365,318 54 758,774.34
6] Tax Expenses:
Il Current Tax 497,564.00 58,450.00
5] Mat Crectit - -
Iti Defarred Tax - -
7)  Profit Afer Tax 1,067,854.34 00, 52434
18)  Mominal value per share
Batir walue per share 0.17 0.11
Dxdtatind Earming pef swadd 0.17 0.11

Sy of signifiant ocooanting policies 1
The Motes are an integml part of Snandal stofements

This ix the Profit and Loss Statemesd refered &0 in our report even dote
For Sheetal Sameiya & Associstes

Crarternd Accouwrtants

Firm Regsiraton Ko 0114780

§DI/-

Abhitesh Dubey
Partner

Membenship Mo, 147923
Vodndar, 20 May 1015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of

Kavit Indusiries Limited

SD/- SD/-

Mr Javesi Thakkar Mr. Hiren Rac
Mamaging direcsor [Hrector
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Favil Indusines LImied
{Formerly Known as Atreya Petrochem Limited)

CASH FLOAW ETATEMENT FOR THE YEAR EMDED MARCH 31, 2015

Amount in )

Faar podod Fanr pnced
TR EE-) LES LR TEY
. Cosh Flow from Dpensting Sctlvities
[Prafit Bafora Tax 1,565,418 758,774
Adjusimeenrs fon
Deprecantion and Amoctiention Expense 19505, 018K =, 052,537
CHEeF noaroperating lncoms (ncl Wrireen - offy H..R’J'ﬁ.z_:: |15,550.780|
Interouk expomnae &R, B0
Frefiminary Expenses W' off 134,087 124,087
brvzurne Tas Provision 307 G54 -
TrEwitened. Innmimee - -
Oporating Profi bobore WWaorking Capaal ohangos (720,189) (2,692 6X2|
Adjustments for
Inveniorien 1, 500086 j2.57a.120]
Trode recelvables and Cher Reosjvable 4,214 432 119, 528 B0
Tracln poyahle and COahier Paynbies LT0 RS 2,235,772
Increase) {Crecréass] in shor teom barrowing 34,801 4880
Increnme) [Decremse] in provisisos -
Zash Gonerabed from Dpecaiion F wml:ﬂs [EEE N EE]
Dhireect Tax Paid - 1153210
Het Cank Inflaw Erami (oo wp fram O " EEERE (27,732,331
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purohinse o Mxed nssess B 12,00 j2.3v1. L0
Purchaas of Inicstinenia [ ESRNlE
Inderest recoived 3070580
Diviclernd reesived = -
Mt Sank inflow froml (cugfiaw) from Investing asctivities 2,248 988 (24,140,320)

T, Cash Flow fromm Finanoing Saotivitos @

Prooeeds § Repoyment from Long Teom BormowingiNer) 15,530,014 [ T B
Proceeda fronm Long Term Borrowing (12 652, 1y 4,105 360
Proceeds, Repaymment from Loons and Advanoess [Her) 1138003, 751 |SHA30T 8 B8R
Interaak pukd mm 12, Sl
Proceeds of Shore Appllcation money 119,387 430 AR5 TN, 000
Mot Cosh infow fromid (outfow]) from Financing activitios (36,868,881 | 54.378.521
Het ncrease { {docreaso) incash and cash cquivatonis 6,333, 163 a1 anj

(Dpaning Cash and Cash Equivadons

P el R (EENS
14510, EET} LA, S0

(Closing Gosh and Cash Equlvalonis R
Cnab in hand ! iﬂ:ﬁ 134,000
Finmk halanren G2, 1459, 567
. 39,357) |
Bkdiional Indormeation :
1} The & Linmh Ml ha lirr:t Mnthend @i art on
Sepounting Sroedard : =i A iec] By The Companies Aceoplnts
Hule=, 206

2} Figuires in b PR O
] Previcus yeur fpures linve been

ki
Srondord

W
vensl f restnted where neersanry

ThiEs 15 Cash Flow Statement referred oo our report of even dite

For Sheotsl Samriys & Associatos

| Li
b Dl - i A P Fir and on Behinll of the Board of Direorors of

Favit Indusiries Limited

SD/-

At h by SD/- SD/-

Furt Mr Jdoyesh Thaldkar M. Hiren R
Membership Ho, (O7E54 Bnnaping direrior [irecior

Lira A0 My 3015

7 Qc
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

1. General Information

Kavit Industries Limited (Formery known as Afreya Petrochem Limited] i= Public Limited
Company incorporated in India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1936, The

Company's strength les in the various business Scgments like manufacturing of Oil
Products, Manufacturing & Trading of Garments of men and weman wears with Brand
MName "RAW ", Company has also expanded another Line of Business in Power Sector with

Name " KAVIT GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED" [ 1% SFY OF KL, The same. hes
been sct up as a Solar Encrgy Power Project in Kamataka which is awarded by KARNATARA
RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED [Govt of Karnataks Undertakingl,

2. Basis of preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements
{a) Accounting Conwvention
The Accounts of the Company are prepared under the Historical Cost Convention on
the Acerual Basis of Accounting in accordance with the Generally Accopted Aceounting
Principles in India ("GAAPT) and in compliance with the mandatory Accounting
Standards notified under the Companies (Accoanting Standards} Bulea, 2006, as
amended, and with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, The
congolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupecs rounded off o the
NEanest rupees,

The preparation of conaolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management o make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of consolidated
financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting periods.
Examples of such estimate include future obligations under emplovee benefit plans,
income taxes, usefill lives of fixed assets and intangible assets, impairment of asses,
provigion for douwbtful debts ete. Management belicves that the estimates used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Actual resulis could vary from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are
made as the management becomes aware of the changes in circumstances surrounding
the estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized in the period in which
such results are known/ materialized. Effect of material changes is discioged in the

nates to the conschidated financial statements.

The Company has also reclassified the previous year figures in accordance with the

requirements applicahle in the current vear.

86 >
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current o non-current as per the
Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria sct out in the revised Schedule V]
to-the Companies Act, 1956, Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisitions of assets for proceasing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained itz operating cvele as 12 months for the purpose of

current-mon-current classification of assets and lisblities:

(b) Tangible Assets, Depraciation

i. Tangible assets are stated at Cost less Accummlated Depreciation, [mpairment
loss, f any, ascertained as per the Accounting Standard 28 (Impairment of
Asacts), Cost comprises the Purchase Price and any auch costa attributable for
the purpose of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended uae.,

ii. Tangihle Assers under consfruction, Advances paid owards asguisition of
Tangible Asscts and Cost of Assets not ready for wse as at the year end, ane
disclosed as Capital Work-In Progress.

iii. In respect of Tangible Assets depreciation. is provided on Straight linc basis
applving the rates specified in schedule X1V of Companies Act 1956 except
Computer.

iv. Tangible Ascets below Re 10000 are folly depreciated in the year of
acfuisition.

{c) Investment
Investments of long term-nature are atated &t cost, less  adjustment for any
diminuton, other than temporary. i the value thereof, Current Investments are stated

at lower of cost or market value.

(d) Inventory

Fmished and Semi-Finished Products produced and purchased by the company are
carried at Cost and net realisable value, whichever is lower.

Work in Progress is carried at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Raw Matcrial is carried at lower of cost and net reafisable value.

Stores and Spares paris are carried at coat. Necessary provision is made and expensed
in cage of identificd abaclete and non moving itcms.

Coat of Inventory is gencrally ascertained on the "Weighted average” basis. Work 1n
progress, Finished and semi finished products are valoed at on fall absorprion cost

basis.

/ﬁ
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Cost Comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business i bringing

such inventorica to its location and includes, where applicable, appropriate overhcads

hazed on normal level of activity. Packing Material iz considered as finished goods,
Consumahle stores are written off in the vear of Purchase,

(e} Employea Benefits

Prowvision for Grataity, Leave Encashment and bonus has not been made a5 none of
the emploves have completed the minimum qualified period of services,

Imipairment of Assets

Af each halance sheet date, the management reviews the carrving amounts of each

cash generating unit to determine whether there is any indication that those assets

were impaired. If any such indication exits, the recoverable amount of the assets is

egtimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, Recoverable amount
i5 higher of an asset™s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use,

the estimated future cash Nows expected from the continuing use of the assets and
from its disposal are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects the current market assessments of time vahae of money and the risks
specific 1o the assets. Cash flows used o determine value in use are derived from

anmual budgets and strategic plans of the cash generating units,

{g) Revenue Recagnition

Sale are recognized on when substantial risks and rewards of ownership in the
goods are transferred to the buyer ie. delivery as per terms of sale.

{h] Other Income

U]

()]

Interest Income and income fenm Investments are aceninted nn acemial hasis.
Dividend [nceme is recognized when the right fo receive dividend is established.
Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in Foreign Currency and Non-Monetary Assets are accounied for at
the Exchange Rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. All monetary items
denominated in Foreign Currency are converted at the Year-End Exchange Hate.
The Exchange Differences arising on such conversion and on settlement of the
transactions are recognized as income or as expenses in the vear in which they
arise.

Taxes on Income

Carrent Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred Tax is recognized for all the timing differences; subject to the consideration
of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets,

88
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there
15 ressonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which sueh deterred tax assets can be realied,

(k} Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash & Cash Equivalent for the purpose of eash How statement comprises of cash
at bank and in hand and short term investments bank deposits with an orginal
maturity of three months or less,

() Provisions
A Provision is recognized when company has a present obligation as a result of past
evenls, it is probable that an outfllow of resourees embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and relisble estimate can be made of the amount
of the obhgation, Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are
determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the currenl best estimates,

(m) Trade Receivables:

In respect of Hecewable bor Sundry Debtors (Incl. Recewvable on Sale of Investments|
of R5.160.92 Lacs and Other Trade receivable, the amount of Bad & Doubtful Debts
are is not ascertainable on account of non- receipt of confirmation from the party.

(n) In respect of loan and advances, the amount of bad and doubtiul debts s not
ascertainable on account of non- receipt of confirmation [rom the party.

o] In the opinion of the Directors, Current Assets, Loans & Advances have values at
which they are stated in the Balance Sheet, if realized in the ordinary course of
busimess, The provision for depreciation and all known labihites is adeguate,

[p) Sundry Creditors, Unsecured loans, other liabilities, loans and advances, sundry
debtors, and other current assets are subject to conbirmation.

{q) Micro Small & Medium Enterprise: The Company is in the process of compiling the
relevant inlormabion. Dues o Micro and small enterprises have been determined (o
the extent such parties have been identilied on the basis of mlormation collected by

the management. This has been relied upon by us
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(h  Claims, Demands and Contingencies ;

Deetails of disputed and) or contingent Liabilities are as follows:

As on As on
H.03.2015 31.03.2014
Income Tax Demanded-Disputed 1,58,27,752 1,58,27,752

8} In the opinicn of the Management, the Provident Fund and ES] act are not

applicable, hence no provision bave been made for the same,

() Earning & Expenditure in Fareign Curreticy -

{u) Directors Eemuneration; Nil [P.Y, - Nil|

(v} Auditors Femuncration : 67416/~ (P.Y.60000]

{w) Related party disclosures @

Nil |P.Y. = I§il)

a. List of related parties with whom transaction have taken place.

Sr.
No.

Name of the Related Party

Relationship

Pacific Securities Ltd.
Natural Expo Agro Ltd.
Prabhav Industries Ltd.

Galav Finance & Investment Pvt. Ltd.

Kavit Investment Pvt. Ltd.
Empire Housing Finance Ltd.

Pacific Finstock Ltd.

Companies / Firms in which
Directars [/ Belative  of

Director are interested

X N o e

Jayesh Thakkar (Incl. Prop. Pavitra

Corporation]

Director of the Company
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2 SHARE CAPITAL :
[ A=A Hs ATOT
AUTHORISED March, 2045 March, 2014
G5,00,000 Exquity Shares of T,10/- each 3, K0, D00, 00 65, 060, O 0
Total 35, 000,000.00 G5,000,000,00
ISEUED, SUBECRIBED & PAID-UP
4.54,60,000 Equity Shares of T, 104- each 4464, B00.000.00 Gk, S0, DO 0
Total 4E4,00,000,00 4,500, 000,00

Terms'rights attached to equity shares ;

2,1 The company has-ooly ooe class of equity shares having a par vahee of T, 10/ per share, Each Holder of equity shares is
entitld to vote per share, The company declares and of pays dividends in Indien rupees, The dividend proposed, i any, by the
Baard Direciors = Meeting, During the vear ended 315t March sobjecs to the apgroval of the sharebakders in the ensuing
Aniual Generald 2014, was . Nil (Previous Year T8I the amount of per share dévidend recognised as distrbutions to equity
sharelsolders

2.2 The Company has issued 4,00,00,000 warrant fully coovertible into squity shares of 7,15 each moluding premaem of 7.3
dhring the current year but has mot increased fs sutharisad share capital, Which is not kofull,

1.4 Dwtails of Share holders holding mars than 5% of Shares ane as under-

A at 31 March, 2015 As at 31 March,2014
% of

Name Catagary | Shareholding Mo of Shares 't of Shareholding

Raghurvir International Pyt Lid. Preferanc Share 19 38% EIEERLT 000
Shree Saibaba Exim Pyt Lid. Prelerence Share 15.07% TUO0000 0.0
EIL Vercade Trading Put. Ltd. Preference Share §.63% 40BGIY 0.0
Krystalkbear Propertles Py, Lid. Preference Share H.40% FUOH000 0.0
.ﬁ.pra,leem T:adi:ug Pot, Ligl, Preference Share T.73% E{E N 0.0
Ethan Construcians Pet. Lid. Preference Share 7.10% 00000 0,0
Saint Infrastructure Pvt. Lid. Preference Share 6.580% F200000 0,00
Gill Entertainment Pyt, Lid. Preference Share 6,67% 3100000 0040
Indivar Traders Put. Ltd. Preference Share . 24% 2O00000 Q.00

As per records of the company, inciuding its regster of sharehilders members and other deciarations neceived fom
sharehalders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares

2.5 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :-

As on 31-03-2015 As on 31-03-2014
Number of
Parficidars Shares Rs.in Lakhs | Number of Shares Rs. in Lakhs
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 6,450,000.00 64,500,000.00 6,450,000.00 64,500,000.00
Add : Fresh issue during the year 40,010,000.00 |  400,100,000.00 — —
Outstanding at the end of the year 64.,460,000.00|  464,600,000.00 6,450,000.00 64,500,000.00
/9?
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Kavit Industries Limied (Fromerly Known as Alraya Petrochem Limited)

JRESERVES AND SURPLUS :

a} Securities Premium Resarve
Dipenivg at beginring
Additinn during the year
Utilised during the year

Cloging af end

b} General Reserve
Opening at beginning
Addirian during the year
Uikised during the year

Closing at end

¢} Security Premium
Opening at beginning
Additian during the year
Utilised during the year
Closing st and

d} Surphus!{Deficit)
Opening &t beglnning
Additin during the year

Closing 1 end
Grand Tatal {z+bre)

4 LONG-TERMW BORROWINGS :
Secured Term Loans

i From Banks

ii| From Finaneial Insfitutions=

iii} From NBFC

Sub-Todal [a)

Unsecured Term Loans

ij Loans and Advences Trom related parfies

From Directars

From Corporates

i) Other Lonns and Advances

From Corporates

(thers

Sub-Tatal {t)
Total {2+b)

4.1 All the Unssoured loans are withaut any repayment schexdule but are payable oo demand,

Kavit Industries Limited !il

March, 2014

13,802, 841.00
T00,224.34 |

S00,0500.00
3043202504

2,531, 437.00
1,540.000.00
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Kavit Industries Limited m

As At 31 LET K
5 OTHER LONG TERM LIARILITIES March,2015 March, 2094
Others 32,724,732.75 ER.256, 345
Total 32,724,732.75 33,256,348.94
Sl Otbars incluck= suridry creclitars oulatardge Fie e Chan 12 oo e,
As At 31 LETS K
& OTHER LOMG TERS PROVISIONS March,2015 March, 2014
Provissan for Employes Beoefis
Franciagom for Grataity — —
Lewve Encashment — _
Talal - -
.1 The Mansgemnagl igaf (he ODpinion (hat frone of e amplovess Balls with i D gieoyisian of Graduify, PRESIC and of i, &6
no provision has been done,
As At 31 Fs A AT
7 TRADE PAYABLES March,2015 March 2014
Track: Payahles* 1,930,776.75 LAST, 34 BT
Total 1,930,776.75 1,651,391.67

7.1 Trade payables are for goods purchased and services taken during the normal c:

Trseof-usine:

7.0 The Coimpiiny’ hée nol fece i) mfermabicn from wimdore repanding Mhedr atafie uider (e Meora, Smsll & Medisim
Enterprises Develpgment Act, 2004 and henee discloaure relating bo amount unpald ar the year end together with interest

paid { payahble urder the Act have mot been given

[ AsAt3T ESETIT |

8 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES March,2015 March, 2014
Currsnl Maturities of Long-Temn Loans
Seciwed Term Loars
From Banks — —
From Firancial [nstitirtions — —
From NBEFC — —
Tabal ia) - .
Unsecured Term Loans
i} Loans and Advances from related parties
From Direcicos 4,828,129.32
From Corporates 5,570,771.84
1ty Crther Loons ard Advances
From Corporates 24,400,000.00
Others —
Total (b) 34,798,901.16 —
Olbvbris
Statwrory Does 549,030.98 386,043.61
Others — —
Tatal ig] 549,030.98 386,043.61
Interest Accroed but pot Due on Borrewing: — —
Gerand Tabad (atheg) 35,347,932.14 386,043.61

b A Alalary Ques inclinlds VAT, BRcuse Ly
8.3 Other Cierrend Babalites includes renl pavabde | interest pavalde mac atall dues:

VLIS, SUTVIe TRK e 0LNeT SRy payanies,

o3
(93>



Kavit Industries Limited m

Financial Slatements & Notes
Kavit Industries Limied {Fromerly Known as Atreya Petrocherm Limited|

As At31 Az AT
4 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS March,2015 March,2014
Secured
Working capital fectlities from Banks — —
Sub-Tokal {a) =
L el
Diepasits From Pubfic = —
Leeans From related parties - -
Erans Frem nehers — —
Subs-Tatal (] =
Total (a+b) -
As At 31 A ATIT
10 SHORT-TERM FROVISIONS March,2015 March 2014
Provision for Empinyes Benefits*
[eave Encashment — —
Others — 20,000.00
Total (a) — 20,000.00
Provision for Expenses 60,674.00 —
Provisarm for Income Tax 663,715.00 74,817.00
Total (b) 724,389.00 79,837.00
Total (a+h) 724,389.00 99,837.00

101 Provigion foc employes benefits meludes provision of Gretuity, Bonus & keawe encashment payable within 12 month
100.2 Others includes splary and other expense pavable 1o staff

As At 31 Az ATTT
12 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS March,2015 March 2014
A Trade Investments (Unguoted At Cost)
Other Investmant
Investment in shares 35,502,730.15 31,362,730,15
Sub-Todal a) 35,502,730.15 11,362,730,15
B Other Invesiments (Unquoded at Markef Valug|
Sub-Total (b) -
Total (a+h) 35,502,730.15 362 730,15
Aggregate amount of quoted Investments 35,502,730.15 3,362,730.15
Market Value of quoted Investments —
Aggregate book value of un-quoted Investments J1,62,70.11

12.1 Investment in shares includes myestments in varines corportes & prvate Emited companies. [maestment ane siated at coat.

7 oa
Lo >



Financial Statements & Notes

Kavit Industries Limied (Fromerly Known as Afraya Petrochem Limited)

13 LONG -TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES ;
(Unsecuid and Considened Good|

il Loans ord Advances from related parties

Fram Corporates

Dithers

BubsTotal [a)

iip Cbver Losana and Advanees

Fram Corparates

Cithers

Sub-Tatal (4]

Tatal j+t)

13,1 Other includes includes balances with statwicry Authonsy | electricity deposiis &

14 OTHER NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
(Ursecured and Considered Good)
Trade Recelvables
Sraratony [ies
b=

Toial

14,1 Others mcludes MisceThznous Expencitune de Pre- aperative Expemse el

15 NVENTORIES |
Rae Mazerial
Finished Gaoods
Winek i Progriss
Total

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES :
Ureecared and Considered Grood)

COutszanding for & pericd ing, six Iis from the due dare of paymens

Considened Good
Bloubsial

Othirs
Cromaidhred poed

Prowissm for doubalul trade receivalies
Total

17 CASH & BAMK BALANCE

Cash B Cash Eqjuivaben|s
Cazh en Hand
Batances with Bank

I urrenl Accouinta:
With Scheduled Rark]

Total

Kavit Industries Limited !il

TR

March, 2044

133,250 68

492, 706.553,83
284924 50

! 485 BER,B3R.03
kease rent deposiis & oihers.

T

March, 2094

17 B26406, 59
121140447
1,817,700,
20,855, 414.06

Az Ay 3T
March, 2094

1,064 710,00
2,022 192,0
481308, 00

3,603,120.00

March, 2044

As AL
March.2014

34 008.6Y

45 0T




Financial Statements & Notes
Kavit Industries Limied {(Fromerly Known as Alreya Petrochem Limited)

1R EHORT TERM LOANS R ADVANCES

Advance o supgliers e gosds & servees
Clrbaera,
Total
49 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Srarutory Thaes
Nthers
Total

Kavit Industries Limited m

As At31 B At
March,2015 March, 2014
= 110,000
105,423,000.00 _
105,423,000.00 110,000.00
As At 31 A AT AT
March,2015 Mareh,2014
29,044.00 1800, O 0
6,360,022.23 [ Lt R )
6,389,066.23 1,366,581.69




rinancial Statements & Notes

Kavit Industries Limied (Fromerly Known as Atraya Petrochem Limited)

20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Il REVENUE FROM
OFERATIONE

af Proaucrs fosan]
Less: Exciae Dty
Total

Qe Oopsraliog Revenlies

Total

21 OTHER INCOME

s Income
Cnher mon-apersisng | e

inet of expenses directly attribuishle o such neaome el Wodten off

Total

22 COST OF MATERLIAL COMSUMED

Pasthcidars

Opeising Brock of Raw Malerials
Aufd: Purchases of Raw Moterials
Lesia: Closing Stoch of Raw Marerisl

Total

23 FURCHASE OF STOCKAN-TRADE

Pasthcidars

Trading Parchase

Total

Kavit Industries Limited m

Year Ended
March 31, 2015

Yaar Enched
March 31, 2014

March 31, 2015

8,442,860.76
1,009,168.95
7,433,691.81
6,198,915.82 TEFEEIT.ET
Year Ended Yaar Ended

March 21, 2014

March 31, 2015

295,539.54
46,600.98 A
3,976,988.49 B SA0TTRAR
4,319,129.01 [ A
Year Ended Yaar Enached

March 3, 2014

March 31, 2015

1,099,670.00 2000, D0 T
1,442,267.51 4, A3, 906,58
898,626.00 1 A, BT
[ 164331151 EREERS L)
Year Ende: Yaar Enchd

March 31, 2014

I3. 1 Trading Purchase includes purchase of souiny shares b Garmments S Tracling

24 CHANGES N BVENTORY OF FINIBHED GOO0E, WORH-INFPROGRESS

Particidar

Cesning s oo
Finished Goods
Wk 1 Progress

Suls Taotal [a]
Firrighe:l Cirxln
Work i Progresa

Sulx Tatal (k)

Total (a+b)

611,475.00 S OHT.FRT.GT
[ 611,475.00 |  GOEIE7GT
Year Ended Year Enched
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2,022,142.00
481,308.00 -
2,503, HOTOTOm |
630,100.00 2032, 142,00
481,308.00 51,05, T
1,711,408.00 e
1,392,042.00 1,703 25000 |




Financial Statements & Notes

Kavit Industries Limied (Fromerly Known as Atreya Patrochem Limited|

25 EMPLOYEE BEMEFIT EXFENEES
Particulars

Balarics il ircentives
Sacurity Expemnses
Sinff welfore expermos

Total

28 FINANCE COET
Farticulars

Iterest expens:
Bank Charpss

Total

2T OTHER EXPEMSES

Farticulars

Pararwr G Fusl Charges

Calibration & Maolcing Changes
Labows B Wiagss Chorges Expenses
Mukiriy Charges

Freight fi Coarting Charge.

Dther Direct Chareges

Fagtory Expenss

Suls Total [a]

Adveriisement Exproses
Audil Fees

Telephone Expenses

Weh Site Expenss:

Travelling Exprress

Hepabrs & Malpiatnonos

Siils Total {b)

QTHER EXFENEEE

TPrelminery & Shares Benad Expenaes Woafl,
Sales and Promoticn Expenses

Siily Total ig]

Tatal {ash+c)

Yoar Ended
March 31, 2014

Z2,8060.00
TiAa8san

Yaar Endad
March 31, 2014

40,4557, 28
71,333.00
217, b 0
F7,061,43
X, Tk, K

2500000
57, 41600
JERE AR
74,287,000

24 T

3T
19,973.05

04, 37208

A6
TPH 45000
a2, 001,00
35,087.00
SUETA,00

L, 5 A0
1,347 4

124,087,000
Al 450,07

Kavit Industries Limited !il



Financial Staterments & Notes

Kavit Industries Limied (Fromerly Known as Atreya Petrochem Limited)

28 - EARNINGS PER EQLNTY SHARES

PArticulars

Basic Earnings par Shara

Prradin L) aniribatalabe (e Equity sharchelders:
Weighted pverspe number af squity shares

Basic Earnings Par Shdaid

Face walue par Shara

Dilutive Earnings par Shara
Proedin alter adjusting inlerest em petentind cquity shares
Weighted pvermpe number of equety share after conssdering petential ecuity ¢

Dliitiva Easnings par Shara

Kavit Industries Limited m

Yoar Enclod Yizar Estisd
March 31, 20115 March 31, 2014
1,01hT,B54 TO0.324.34
B, 4 540 0080 A, 450, 008
017 011
10 10
1.06T,R54 700,324
B, 4 50 008 A, 450, 008
0.17 0.11




Kavit Industries Limited m
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Kavit Industries Limited m

KAVIT INDUSTRIES LIMITED
[formally known as Atreya Petrochem Limited)
Regi. Office: Vill : Tundao, Tal: Salvi, Vadodara-391773, Gujarat
Email: kavitindustrieslimitedi@gmail.com | Web.: www. atrevapetrochem.com
Phone No.: 0265-2362000, 2361100 | FAX: 0265-2361551 | CIN: L23100GI1990PLCD1 4692

ATTENDANCE SLIP
To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall
I hereby record my presence at Annual General Meeting of Kavit Industries Limited
held on Friday, 25th September 2015 at 10:00 AM. at its Registered Office situated
at village Tundao, Taluka: Savli, Vadodara -391773,

DPID Client ID Folio No. No. of Shares held
Full Name of Shareholder (In block Letters|
Signature
Full Name of Proxy [In block Letters|
Signature

NOTE; No duplicate attendance slip will be issued at the Meeting hall, You are requested to
bring your copy of the Notice of AGM to the Meeting, Photo copies of the Attendance slips
will not be accepted. Please complete this Attendance Blip and hand it over at the entrance

of the Meeting Hall.
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KAVIT INDUSTRIES LIMITED
|formally known as Atreva Petrochem Limited)
Regi. Office: Vill = Tundas, Tal: Saba, Vadodara-391775, Gujarat
Email: kasitindustrieshmitedogroatl com | Wels: sww. atreyapetrochiem, com
Fhane No.: 0265-2303000, 2361100 | FAX: 0265-236E551 [CIN: LZ31006.) 1900PLCO 146592

Form Mo. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

|Pursuant to section 105 {6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 19 [3] of the Companies |Management and

Name of the Member|z):

Administration] Fules, 2014}

Registered Address:

E-mail ID:

Folio No/ Client No:

DP ID:

I/ Wit being the member(s) of..........cccecuveennn. Shares of

the above named Company, hereby appoint;:

1 | Name: Address:
Email ID: Signature:

2 | Name: Address:
Email ID: Signature:

3 | Name: Address:
Email ID: Signature:

as my four proxy o attend and vote fon a poll] for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on the Tuesday, the 23 day of September, 2014 at 0900 AM &nd at
any adjourmment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Reso.

Description
No. |

No. of

shares held For Against

March, 2015.

01 | Adoption of financial statement for the year ended on 31

02 Re- appointment of Auditors of the Company

03 Re- appointment of Mr. Kavit Jayeshbhai Thakkar, Director
retiring by rotation

04 | Re-appointment of Mr. Jayesh Raichandbhai Thakkar as
the Managing Director

05 | Increasing of authorised
46,45,00,000/- to Rs. 66,45,00,000/-

share capital from Rs.

Issue of fully paid-up Bonus equity shares in proportion of
06 1 (one) equity share for every 3 (Three) existing fully paid-
up equity shares held by the members as on the record
date as fixed by the Board.

Signed this on ... .dayof ...

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy Holder(s|

2015

Affix
Eevenue
Stamp

MOTE: This form of Proxy In order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less then 48 hours before the commencement of the Mesting.

302>
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Route map for venue of Annual General Meeting
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NOTES :-
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KAVIT INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(formally known as Atreya Petrochem Limited)
Regi. Office : Viill: Tundao, Tal. Savli, VADOADRA-391775, GUJ.
E-mail : Kavitindustrieslimited@gmail.com  web : www.atreyapetrochem.com
Phone No. :0265-2362000,2361100  Fax: 0265-2361551  CIN: L23100GJ1990PLC014692
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